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Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Far the year ended 21 March 2016

Notes 2016 2015
$ $

(Gross earned premium 1 7,445,483 10,289,774
Reinsurance expense 2 (3,192,515) (3,401,826)
Net Premjum Revenue 4,252,968 6,887,948
Claims Expense 4 (11,499,835) 6,239,500
Reinsurance and Other Recoveries 1 7,646,909 {6,401,521)
Net Claims Expense (3,852,926) {162,021)
Commissions (406,582) (400,381)
Reinsurance commission income 1 306,348 438,897
Net Acquisition Costs (100,233) 38,506
Underwriting Result 299,809 6,764,433
Operating Expenses 3 (1,159,073) (1,385,860)
Investment income 1 1,844,119 2,257,673
Sundry income 1 1,293 501
Net Profit Before Tax 986,148 7,636,747
Taxation expense 5 - -
Net Profit for the Year 986,148 7,636,747
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 986,148 7,636,747

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes.



Mitsul Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch
Statement of Movement in Head Office Account
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Opening Head Office Balance

Net Profit for the Year
Totat Comprehensive Income for the Year

Closing Head Office Balance

2016 2015
$ $
— 41,601,604 _24,054,857
986,148 7,636,747
966,148 7,636,747

The above Statement of Movement in Head Office Account should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2016

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investment in Government Stock
Premium Receivables

Other Current Assets
Reinsurance Receivable
Relnsurance Recoveries
Property, Plant and Equipment
Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts Payable
Reinsurance Payable

Other Current Liabilities
Unearned Premium Reseive
Outstanding Claims Liability
Due to Related Parties

Total Liabtlities

Net Assets

Head Office Account

Notes

@ O

10

11
12
13
17

31 March 20186

31 March 2015

$ $
59,754,339 63,359,475
- 500,000
1,530,360 1,748,730
1,597,131 1,439,052
3,418,220 834,645
39,533,421 35,219,522
14,985 25,579
105,848,456 103,127,003
464,931 811,315
765,369 655,042
291,585 197,727
2,784,665 2,834,754
56,510,709 55,362,010
2,352,045 1,574,051
53,170,704 61,435,398
42,677,752 41,691,604
42,677,752 41,691,604

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

e

“Director

15 JUL 2016

Date

Ditestor—

15 JUL 2016

Date



Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes 2016 2015
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Premiums received 7,613,763 9,969,083
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 749,435 593,194
Interest received 1,975,805 2,240,516
Claims paid {10,351,135) (7,183,666)
Reinsurance premiums paid (3,579,256) (3,489,071}
Net acquisition costs received 7.347 60,973
Operating expenses paid {521,095) (572,294)
Net cash {used in)/from operating activities 19 (4,105,136) 1,618,735
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipt of investments on maturity 500,000 -
Payments for purchases of plant & equipment - (2,329)
Net cash from/{used In) investing activities 500,000 (2,329)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,605,136) 1,616,406
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 63,359,475 61,743,069
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 59,754,339 63,359,475

The ahove Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand 8ranch
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fer the year ended 31 March 2016

Reporting Entity

The financia! statements are for Mitsul Sumitemo Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch ("the Branch™). The Branch’s
ultimate parent company is MS & AD insurance Group Holdings, Inc. The Branch is a branch of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company
Limited ("the Company"}, a company incorporated in Japan and an overseas company registered under the Companles Act 1993,
The Branch provides insurance both directly to other entities and through reinsurance arrangements. The Branch's principal place of
business is AMP Centre, 29 Customs Street West, Auckland, New Zealand, These Branch financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the full financial stalements of the Company.

The Branch operates as a fire and general insurer and reinsurer within New Zealand.

Basis of Preparation

Statement of compliance

The Branch is a profit ofiented entity. The Company is classified as a Financial Market Conduct (FMC) Reporting Entity for the
purpose of the FMC Act 2013, The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice in New Zealand (NZ GAAP) and in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1693, the Financial
Reporting Act 2013 and the Insurance (Prudential Supervision} Act 2010. They comply with the New Zealand equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards as applicable for Tier 1 for-
profit entities under the External Reporting Board of New Zealand {XRB) accounting standards framework. They also comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The financial statements of the Brgnch are for the year ended 31 March 2018, The financial statements were authorised for issue by
the Directors on the 15 _of 2016,

Critical Judgements and Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NZ IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, talso
requires management {o exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Branch's accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degres of Judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 23. These relate to the cutstanding claims liability and reinsurance recoveries in Nofes 13 and § respectively. The
Branch makes estimates and assumptions In respect to certain key assets and liabifities, Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other faclors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Basis of Measurement

The financlal staterments have been prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by certain exceptions noted In the financial
statements, with the principal exception being the measurement of investments at fair value and the measurement of the cuistanding
claims liability and related reinsurance recaveries as set out below,

Presentation and Functicnal

The Branch's functional currency s New Zealand dollars ($). These financial staternents are presented in New Zealand dollars ($).

Changes In Accounting Policles

The accounting policles have been consistently applied to all pericds presented in these financial statements.
Significant Accounting Policies
Insurance Contracts

An insurance contract is defined as a contract under which one party (the insurer) accepls significant insurance risk from another
party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain insured event adversely affects the
policyholder. The insurance activities of the Branch alf arise from general insurance contracts,

Premlium Revenue

Direct premium comprises amounis charged to the pelicyholders and reinsurance premium comprises amounts charged to other
insurers {inward reinsurance) net of fire service and earthquake levies collected on behalf of the Government. The earned portion of
premiums raceived and receivable, including unclosed business, is recognised as revenue, Premium is earned from the date of
attachment of risk, over the contract period based on the pattern of risks underwritten. Unearned premium is determined using the
385ths methoed,



Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Slgniftcant Accounting Pelicles (continued)
Qutwards Relnsurance Expense

Premium ceded on reinsurance is recognised as an expense fram the date of attachment of risk over the period of indemnity of the
reinsurance contract in accordance with the expected pattern of the Incldence of risk. A portion of cutwards reinsurance premium is
treated as deferred reinsurance premium and recognised over the period of reinsurance cover,

Reinsurance premium expense on catastrophe and single risk reinsurance is determined on a straight line basis over the financial
year based upon a predetermined [eve] of cover, which is periodically adjusted to refiect the actual lavel of cover.

Reinsurance Commission Incoma

Reinsurance commission income is earned on business ceded to reinsurers. Commission income is recognised as the service is
performed.

Clalms Expense
Claims expense represents payments made on claims and the movement in the outstanding clalms liability as described below.
Qutstanding Clalms Llabllity

The cenfral estimate of outstanding claims liabilities is the best estimate of the present value of future projected claims payments and
associated clalm handling costs in respect of claims reported but nat yet paid, claims incurred but not reported (*IBNR™ and claims
incurred but not enough reported ("IBNER").

Standard actuarial methods are applied fo all classes of business to assess the central estimate of outstanding claims liabilities.
Features and trends of claims experience including claim frequencies, average claim sizes and individual claim estimates are
analysed and assumpticns about the future are selected.

A risk margin Is added to the centrat estimate in determining the outstanding claims liabilities. The risk margin is designed to increase
the probability of the cutstanding claims liabilities proving ultimately to be adequate.

Liability Adequacy Testing

The reserve for unearned premiums includes premiums received for risks that have not yet expired. Generally the reserve is released
over the term of the insurance contract and is recognised as premium income.

A liability adequacy test is performed at each balance date to assess whether there are any deficiencies in the uneamed premium
reserve due to expected future claims and claims costs. The amount of these expected future claims is estimated vsing the present
value of future claims and expenses plus an additional risk margin 1o reflect the inherent uncertainty in those estimated cash flaws,
This Is compared to the uneamed premium reserve net of defered acquisition costs. Any deficlency Is recognised In profit or loss
after first writing down any deferred acquisition costs, Any shortfall after having writlen dewn acquisition costs is then recognised in
profit or loss with the corresponding amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as an unexpired risk liability.

The kability adequacy test is performed at the leve) of a portfolio of contracts that are subject to broadly similar risks and are managed
together as a single portfolic, No deficiency was identified as at 31 March 2018 (2015: Nit).

Reinsurance Recelvables and Recoveries

Reinsurance receivables, being amecunts recoverable on paid claims, and reinsurance recoveries on outstanding claims liabilities are
recegnised in revenue, Reinsurance recoveries are measured at the present value of the expected future recelpts, calculated on the
same basls as the outstanding claims liability. A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence as a result of an event
that occurrad after Initial recognition of the asset that the amounis due may not be received and the amount can be reliably measured.
Any impairment Is recognised in profit or loss.



Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies {continued)
Acquisltion Costs

Acquisition costs incurred in obtaining and recording Insurance contracts are deferred and recognised as assets where they can be
reiiably measured and where it Is probable that they will give rise to revenue that will be recognised in profit or loss in subsequent
reporting periods. Deferred acquisition costs are measured at the lower of cost and recoverable amount. Deferred acquisition costs
are amorlised in accordance with the expected patiern of incidence of risk under the insurance contract to which they refaie.

Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax and is recognised in profit or loss. Current tax Is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using 1ax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to fax
payable in respect of previous years, Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxaticn purposes.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on
the faws that have been enacled or substantively enacted by the raporting date. A deferred tax asset is recognised tc the extent that it
i5 prabable that future taxable profits will be available against which temporary difference can be utilised, Deferred tax assets are
revlewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

The Statement of Comprehensive Income has been prepared so that all components are stated exclusive of GST. Allitems in the
Statement of Financial Position are stated exclusive of GST, with the exception of receivables and payables, which include GST
invoiced.

Forelgn Currency Transactions

Transactions in forelgn currencles that are settled In the accounting period are translated at the settlement rate, Transactions in
fareign cuirency that are net seftled in the accounting period, resulling in monetary assets and liabilitles denominated In forelgn
currencies at the balance date are translated to NZD at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Forelgn exchange differences
arising on thelr translation are recognised In profit or loss.

Cash and Gash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances on call at bank and cash deposits with an original maturity of ninety days or
less.

Financial Assets

A financial asset Is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the Branch becomes a party o the contractual provisions
of the instrument. [niflal recognition is at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset except for financial assets af fair value through profit or loss which exclude transaction costs.

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery of the asset within the time frame established by regulation or market
convention are recognised at frade date, being the date on which the Branch commits to buy or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive future cash flows from the assets have expired, or have been transferred, and the Branch
has transferred substantially all risk and rewards of ownership.

Government stock has been designated at fair value through prefit and loss as it is held to match the average duration of a

corresponding insurance fiakility as assets backing general Insurance liabilities. The fair value of government stock is established by
reference to quoted bid prices, Interest income is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method.

The Branch also holds cash and cash equivalents which back general insurance fiabilities.



Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Pelicles {continued)
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded &t cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreclation is charged to
the profit or loss and Is recognised on a siraight line basis over the useful life of the asset at the following rates:

Motor vehicles 21%
Office equipment 40%

The carrylng value of assets are assessed annually for indications of Impairment.

Premium Receivables

Premium receivables are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at their estimated realisable value after providing for non-
payment of premiums in respect of those policies expected to lapse. The collectability of debtors is assessed and provislon Is made
with regard to past experience or if events or circumstances indicate that the amount may not be recoverable.

Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Branch prior to the end of the period, which are unpaid.
Payables are measured at amortised cost,

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Branch’s assets are reviewed at each balance date to determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses directly reduce the carrying amount of assets
and are recognised in profit or [oss. The estimated recoverable amount of receivables is the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate,

Estimated recoverable amount of other assets Is the greater of thelir falr value less costs to sell and vaive in use. Value Inuseis
determined by estimating future cash flows from the use and ultimate disposal of the asset and discounting these to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market rates and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not
generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Head Office Account

The Branch equity in the form of a Head Office Account represents funding provided by the Head cffice together with accumulated
retained earnings, repayable at the discretion of the Branch which is the amount retained for the purpose of financlal soundness. As a
Branch there are no extemally Imposed capital restrictions to which the Branch must adhere. Refer to Note 20 Scivency.

New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments fo standards and interpretations are effective for annuat periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of these is expected to have a significant
effect on the financial statements of the Branch, except for NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, which is expected to become mandatory
for the Branch’s March 2019 financial statements and could change the classification and measurement of financlal assets. The
Branch does not plan to adopt this standard early and the extent of the impact has not been determined.

10




Mitsui Sumitome Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch

Notes to the Financlal Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

1 Total Revenue
This comprises:

Gross writtan premium
Change In unearned premium reserve

Gross Earned Premium

Reinsurance commission income
Relnsurance and other recoveries

Retnsurance Income

Investment Income

QOther income
Sundry income

Total Revenua

1{a) Premium Revenue

Direct
Reinsurance

Total Gross Earned Premium

1{(b) InvestmentIncome

Financial assets at falr value through profit or loss (designated upon Inltial recognition)

Interest income

Change in fair value
Cash and cash equivalents interest income
Total Investment Income

2  Reinsurance Expense

Qutward reinsurance premium expense

Change in uneamed relnsurance premiurm provision

3 Operating Expenses

Management fee

Fees pald to auditors;
audit - statutory financial statements
tax

Depreciation

Employee benefits

Other expenses

Total operating expenses

2016 2015
$ H
7,365,392 5,824,472

50,091 455,302
7,445,483 10,289,774
306,349 438,897
7,648,909 {6.401,521)
7,953,258 {5,962,524)
1,844,119 2,267,673
1,203 501
1,263 501
17,244,153 6,585,324
7,396,720 10,241,271
48,763 48,503
7,445,483 10,289,774
1,302 14,842
- (13,366)
1,842,727 2,958,217
1,844,119 2257673

2016 2015
$ $
(3,678,530) (3,530,481)

486,015 128,655
(3,492,518) {3,401,826)

2016 2018

$ $
641,300 884,028
81,500 78,500
8,550 5,935
10,584 13,403
156,851 159,882
262,178 242212
1,159,073 1,385,860




Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch
Notes to the Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 March 2018

4 Claims Expense

Direct
Reinsurance

2016 2018
$ H
11,499,835 (6,239,500)
11,499,835 (6,239,500}

Current year claims relate to risks borne In the current financlal year, Prior year ¢laims relate to a reassessment of the risks bome in all previous

financial years.

2016

Gross claims incurred - undiscounted

Discount movement

Gross claims Incurred - discounted

Reinsurance and cther recoveries - undiscounted
Discount movement

Relnsurance and other recoveries - discounted

Net clalms Incurred

2015

Gross claims incurred - undiscounted
Discount movement
Gross claims incurred - discounted

Reinsurance and other recoveries - undiscounted
Discount movement
Reinsurance and ofher recoverias - discounted

Net claims Incurred

Current Year Prior Years Total
$ $ ]
4,212,701 7.314,109 11,526,810
{40,108) 13,131 (26,875)
4,172,595 7,327,240 11,499,835
(543,338) (7,106,133} {7,648,471)
5,319 {2,757} 2,562
(538,019) (7,108,880) {7,646,909)
3,634,576 218,350 3,852,926
Current Year Prior Years Total
$ $ $
3,351,480 (9,604,964) (6,253,484)
(13,380} 27,364 13,884
3,338,100 {9,577.600) {6,239,500)
(996,524} 7,408,222 6,409,698
2,726 (10.,903) (8.177)
{993,788} 7,385,319 6,401,521
2,344,302 (2,182,281) 162,021

Included In relnsurance recoveries is a loss of $294,494 (2015; gain of $59,543) in relation to the Impact of the movement in the Japan/New
Zealand exchange rate on the retention under the Mitsui global catastrophe reinsurance programme which is denominated in Japanese Yen,

Details of the uncertainties that exist In measuring gross incurred clazims and reinsurance recoveries arising from the Canterbury earthquakes are

explained in Note 13.

The net claims incurred movement In 2015 on claims incurred In prior years primarily relates to release of actuarial reserves and corresponding

reinsurance recoveries on Canterbury earthquake ¢laims.

5 Taxation Expense

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax

Income tax at Branch tax rate 28% (2015: 28%)
Tax adjustment on unrecognised losses

Total Income Tax Expense

2018 2015
$ H
085,148 7,636,747
276,121 2,138,289
(276,121) (2,138,289)




Mitsul Sumitome Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

2016 2015
3 Investment in Government Stock $ $
Fixed income securities - New Zealand Government Steck - 500,000
2018 2015
7  Other Current Assets $ $
Accrued income 52,143 183,820
Deferred acquisition costs 261,534 263,503
Defarred relnsurance premium 1,146,053 660,028
Prepaid expenses 77,604 94,710
G5T receivable 59,687 236,672
1,597,131 1,439,052
7{a} Deferred acqulsition costs i
Deferred acquisition costs at 1 April 263,803 264,589
Acquisition costs defered 404,413 359,605
Amortisation charged to the profit or loss (4086,582) {400,391)
Deferred acquisition costs at 31 March 261,634 263,803
7{b) Deferred reinsurance premium
Deferred reinsurance premium at 1 April 660,038 531,383
Reinsurance premium deferred 3,678,530 3,530,481
Reinsurance premium charged 1o the profit or loss {3,192,515) (3,401,826)
Deferred reinsurance premium at 31 March 1,146,053 560,038
2016 2015
8 Relnsurance Recoverles R $ s
Reinsurance recovedes arising from claims 39,533,421 35,219,522
Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable at 1 April 35,219,522 42,670,039
Recoveries on claims reassessed 7,108,880 (7,385,319)
Recoveries received (237,738) (1,048,096}
Transfer of recoveries to receivables {3,005,272) -
Recoveties on new claims 538,019 953,798
Reinsurance and other recoverles recelvable at 31 March 39,533,421 35,219,522

Reinsurance is purchased to make the Branch's results mare predictable by reducing the effect that individual large ¢laims, and ¢atastrophis
events that lead to multiple claims, have en results. The majority of reinsurance is arranged using a combination of faculiative or excess of loss
treaty arrangements.

There are still considerable uncertainties that exist surrounding the measurement of reinsurance recoveries as a resull of the uncertainties
surrounding the measurement of the related outstanding claims liabilities resulting from the Canterbury earthquakes. These uncertainties are
discussed in Note 13,



Mitsul Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited - Mew Zealand Branch
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

9  Property, Plant and Equipment

Motor vehlcles  Office equipment Total
Cost $ $ $
Balance at 31 March 2014 41,188 42,344 83,533
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Balance at 31 March 2015 41,188 42,344 83,533
Additions - - -
Balance at 31 March 2016 41,189 42,344 83,533
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 31 March 2014 9,370 35,181 44,5581
Charge for the year 8,650 4,753 13,403
Balance at 31 March 2015 18,020 39,934 57,854
Charge for the year 8,650 1,944 10,594
Balance at 31 March 2016 26,670 41,878 68,648
Carrying amounts
At31 March 2015 23,168 2,410 25,570
At 31 March 2016 14,519 466 14,985
2018 2015
10  Accounts Payable $ $
Trade creditors and accruals 320,474 664,309
Govemment levies 144,457 147,508
464,931 811,818
2016 2015
11 Other Current Liabilities $ $
Unearned reinsurance commission 212,125 106,714
Non-resident withholding tax 79,460 91,013
291,585 197,727
11{a) Unearned reinsurance commission
Unearned reinsurance commission at 1 April 106,714 85,033
Reinsurance commission deferred 411,760 480,578
Reinsurance commission recognised in profit or loss {306,349) (438,897)
Unearned reinsurance commisslon at 31 March 212,125 106,714
2016 2015
12 Unearned Premium Reserve $ §
Uneamed premium liability 2,784,655 2,834,754
Unearned premlum Eability at 1 April 2,834,754 3,300,056
Defarral of prermium on contracts wiitten at year end 2,784 665 2,834,754
Prior year premium earned (2.834,754) (3,300,056}
Unearned premium liability at 31 March 2,784,665 2,834,754




Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

12 Unearned Premium Reserve {continued)
Liability adequacy test

A ltability adequacy test ("LAT") was performed as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, Both tests identified a surplus the calculations for which
are disclosed below:

2016 2018
$ $
Gross unearned premium 2,784,665 2,834,754
Deferred reinsurance premium (1,146,053) {660,038}
Deferred acquisition expenses {49,508) {157,089}
Pramium available to meet expected claims cost 1,588,103 1.810.,813
Net premium liability (including 75% probability of adequacy risk margin) 1,469,820 1,023,734
LAT result Pass Pass

The risk margin included in the Branch's expectad future cash flows for future claims is 33% (2015: 27%). The risk margin takes into account
uncerainty within the estimates of estimated premium liability for each type of risk insured and applying an allowanse for diversification across the
portfolio. The risk margins adopted at this valuation are based on a review of the most recent experience,

2016 2015

13 Outstanding Claims Liabllity 13 $
13(a}) Gross outstanding claims liabillty
Central estimate of outstanding claims [abilities 52,603,536 51,115,451
Discount to present value (31,2789) {11,113}
Risk margin 3,798 441 4,219,161
Clairs handling expense ) 140,011 38,511

56,510,709 55,362,010

There remains uncertainty surreunding the measurement of gross claims liabilities and the retated reinsurance recoveries. The uncertainty arises
from a number of factors including; complexities associated with determining key astuarial assumptions including the selection of a risk margin,
foreign exchange and inflationary assumptions; and uncerainty surrounding the outcome of legal proceedings and applicable building standards .
These uncertainties existed during the prior period and are likely to remain for the foreseeable future. However as the claims relating to the
Canietbury Earthquakes are settled the magnitude of this uncertalnty decreases.

Given the nature and number of uncertainties the Branch's actual claims experience may deviate, perhaps substantially, from the gross

outstanding claims liabilities recorded as at 31 March 2018, Any changes to estimates will be recorded in the acsounting period when they become
known.

13(b} Claims development table

The following fable shows the development of net undiscounted outstanding claims refative to the ultimate expected claims for the previous six
most recent accident years.

Ultimate claims cost estimate 2010 . 2011 2012 2013 2014 2018 2016 Total

H ’ H 5 $ H $ H $
At end of aceident year - - B,353,454 2,613,262 1427174 3219289 3554776 3,584,776
One year laler ... 10508924 8E31,171 1862865 1160408 3011577 o sousn

180310931 7751877 1541712 1130371
169,155,048 7058354 1,809,955
161,445,112 7,506,864

139,371
609,955

" ars iéigr
Four years later

Five years |ater 169435711 _ Z ; . 169,435,711
Six years later . ) 828,923
Total current estimate of : '
ultimate claims costs 826,923 163435711 7,506,884 1,609,955 1139871 3011677 3,554,776 187087197
Cumulative payments 737787 124392341 2236582 1.609.955 1.139.370 2.973.205 1,464,421 134,483 661
Undiscounted central estimate 81136 45,113,370 5,270,302 - 1, 38372 200,355 52,603,518
Discount 252 o] 0 - 0 359 . 30.668 31.279
Discounted central estimate 40,884  45113,370  5.270.302 - 1 38,013 . 2,059,687 62,672,267
Claims handling expense 5814 0 0. - 0. 2432, 131,765, 140011
Risk margin . . 23132 . 2714384 527.030 - 0 9676 524238 3.798.441
Gross outstanding claims liability 119,830 47,827,734 5,797,332 - 1 50,121 2,715,691 58,510,709
Reinsurance recoveries on
outstanding claims liability - 21376 - 39,147,542 . 0- - - 0 9495 - 348,808 (39,533,221}
Net outstanding claims liability 92,454 8,680,192 5,797,332 - 1. 40,626 2,366,883 16,977,488
15



Mitsui Sumitome Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

13 CQutstanding Claims Liability (continued)

2016 2015
$ $

13{¢) Reconclllation of movement in outstanding claims

Outstanding claims liability at 1 April 55,362,010 51,115,451

Claims reassessed 7,327,240 {11,113}
Claims paid (10,351,135} 4,219,161

New claims 4,172,595 38,511

Qutstanding clalms liability at 31 March 56,610,710 55,362,010

14 Deferred Tax

Al 31 March 2015 the Branch has unused tax losses of $83,333,684 {2015: $84,319,832) for which no deferred tax asset is recognised.

16  Contingent Liabilitles

The Branch has no contingent liabilities at batance date (2015: Nil).

16  Commitments

The Branch has no commitments for expenditure at balance date (2015; NiI).

17 Related Party Information

The Branch has a related party relationship with its parent entity, other group entities and its directors and executive officers. The Branch has had
a number of transactions during the year with the Head Office of the Company, These transactions refate to the outward reinsurance of cerain
business written in New Zealand, including reinsurance premiums, reinsurance claims and reinsurance commission earned.

2016 201§
Transactions with Head Office: $ $
Reinsurance premiums 1,101,568 875,917
Reinsurance recoveries {54,140) (153,764)
Reinsurance commission earned {219,264) (169,775)
Other expense paid/ recharged {49.271) {47,378)
778,894 505,000

The Branch is covered by the Mitsui global catastrophe reinsurance programme. This global cover is purchased by the Head Otfice and the

premium is not expensed to the Branch,



Mitsui Sumitorno Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch
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17  Related Party Information {continued)

2018 2015
Outstanding balance with Head Office: $ $
Due to related parties 2,352,945 1,574,051

Aioi Management New Zealand Lid (“Alci"}, a related entity, provides moter vehicle claims handling services on behalf of the Branch.

] 2016 2015
Transactlons with Alol: $ 1
Management fees paid 41,300 35,500
Outstanding balance with Aiol:

Other current assets 77,604 24,710

All the above related party cutstanding balances are not secured and are repayable on demand. The balances are non-interest bearing.

Key Management Personnel ("KMP") are those persons who have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the Company. The remuneration for such KMP is set out in the table below:

2016 2015
$ 5

Short-term employee benefits 150,973 153.512

18  Credit Rating

Mitsui Sumitemo Insurance Coempany Limited has received an A+ (2015; A+) credit rating from $tandard and Poor's. The credit rating is an
Indication of the abllity to pay current and future claims,

19 Reconciliation of the net profit for the period to the net cash flows from operating activities

2016 2015
$ $

Net profit for the period 986,148 7,638,747
Movement in financial assets at falr value through profit or loss - 13,386
Depreciation 10,594 13,403
Change in operating assets and lfabilities

Decrease in premium recelvables 218,370 144,611
Increase in reinsurance receivables (2,583,575} {455,802)
(increase)/decrease in reinsurance recoveries (4,313,899) 7,450,517
Increase in other current assets ’ (158,079} (193,969)
(Decrease)fineraase in accounts payable (346,884) 330,219
Increase in reinsurance payable 110,827 103,981
Increasef{decreasa) in other current ltabllities 93,858 {40,890)
Increase/(decrease) in culstanding claims liability 1,148,888 {13,423,166)
Decrease in unearned premium reserve (50,688 {465,302)
Decrease in amounts due to related parties 778,894 505,000
Net cash flow from operating activities {4,105,138) 1,618,735
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20  Solvency

On 25 March 2013 the Branch was granted a ful! licence under the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (the Act"). As the Branch is a
branch of an overseas insurer it is exempt under the Act from complying with the Solvency Standard for Non-life Insurance Business subject to the
¢ondifion that the Company meets the equivalent Japanese non-Life solvency standard. The table below discloses the solvency margin for Mitsui
Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited which includes the Sranch, as disclosed in the MS and AD Insurance Group Holdings, Inc 2015 Annual
Report and the 31 March 2016 Supplement to the Earnings Repert available from www.ms-ad-hd.com, as calculated under the Japanese
regulations. Tha 2016 Annual Report states that a solvency margin ratio of 200% or higher indicates that an insurance company has sufficient
capability to pay insurance claims and other obligations.

2016 - 2015
NZD In millions NZD In millions
{Unaudited) {Unaudited}
Actual Solvency Capital [A] 33,566 29,647
Minimum Solvency Capital [B] 11,456 8,100
Solvency Margin [A-Bf2] 27,838 25,097
Solvency Ratlo [A/B/2]*100 586,0% 651,6%

21 Financial Risk Management

The Branch's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Branch's averall risk management
program is based on the defined risk appetite of the Branch and the requirements of the Insurance (Prudential Supervision} Act 2010, Funher, the
Branch seeks to optimise the risk/return profile of its assets and liabilities taking into account market fiuctuations. The Branch invests in
government stocks, term depesits and it helds a call account. The Branch regularly menitors the performance and compllance of the investment
portfolio. The Branch's exposure to credit risk, liquldity risk and market risk is detailed below:

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss from a counterparty failing to meet thelr obligations. The Branch's credit risk arises predominantly frem investment
actlvities, reinsurance activitles and dealings with intermedlaries. The maximum exposure to credit risk Is the falr value of Indlvidual financial
assets. The Branch does not hald collateral.

Management limits credit visk by setting high requirements on the credit worthiness of debtors. The Branch has a credit risk procedute in place fo
manage the exposure to insurance contract refated credit risk which is monitored on an ongoing basis. The credit terms for the setifement of
premiums in MNew Zealand is 90 days.

The Branch has a concentration of credit risk with ANZ Bank New Zealand Limited and ASB Bank Limiled of $44,678,833 and $15,075,508
respectively (2015 $48,285,807 and $15,073,668 respectively) representing all cash and cash equivalents held. The Branch's reinsurance
recoveries are spread over a number of counterparties and relate predominantly to the Canterbury earthquakes, The largest concentration with a
single reinsurer is for $8,622,805 (2015: $7,995,450).

The fabla below provides informatien regarding the eredit risk exposure of the Branch by classifying assets according to Standard & Poor's credit
ratings of the counterparties. AAA is the highest possible rating. These credit ratings are grouped In accordance with the specifications cutlined
by the Standard & Poor's Ratings Services.

Credit Rating
AA A BBB Mot Rated Total
2018 $ $ $ $ 3
Cash and Cash Equivalents 59,754,338 - . . 59,754,339
Premium Receivables - - - 1,530,360 1,530,360
Other Current Assets - Accrued Income 52,143 - - - 52,143
Reinsurance Recejvable 785,485 2,607,259 - 15,476 3,418,220
Reinsurance Recoveries 10,084 677 29,147,466 - 301,258 35,533,421
Total 70,686,644 31,754,745 - 1,847,084 104,288,483
Credit Rating
AA A BBB Not Rated Total
2015 $ $ $ $ $
Cash and Cash Equivalents 63,359,475 - - - 63,359,475
Investment in Government Steck 500,000 - - - 500,000
Premium Recelvables - - - 1,748,730 1,748,730
Other Current Assets - Accrued Jncome 183,829 - - - 183,829
Reinsurance Recelvable - 834,645 - - 834,645
Reinsurance Recoveres 8,940,753 25,089,385 - 289,344 35,219,522
Total 72,984,097 26,824,030 - 2,038,074 101,846,201

As at 31 March 2016 there are no assets that are past due or impaired {2015: Nil),
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21 Financial Risk Management {continued)

(b} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Sranch is unable to convert its financial assets Into cash to pay for its financial okligations when they fall dus. The
Branch has processes in place to monitor and forecast its liquidity position. The Branch maintains sufficient funds at all times to meet the needs of
the Branch's cperations. In addition to treasury cash held for working capital requirements the Branch may hold additional liquid, term depcsits to
ensure there are sufficient funds available to meet obligations. All financial assets mature in C-1 Year,

The fable below analyses the Branch's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the reporiing
period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Maturing In:
0 -1 Year 1-2Years 2 -4 Years No Term Total

2018 $ $ $ $ $

Financial Liabilities

Reinsurance Payable 765,868 - - - 765,869
Due to Related Parties - - - 2,352,945 2,352,945
Trade creditors and accruals 320474 - - - 320,474
Total 1,086,343 - - 2,352,945 3,439,288
Maturing In:
0-1 Year 1-2Years 2.4 Years No Term Total

2018 $ $ $ $ $
Financlal Liabilities

Reinsurance Payable 855,042 - - - 655,642
Due to Refated Partles - - - 1,574,051 1,574,051
Trade ¢reditors and accruals 664,308 - - - 664,309
Total 1,319,351 - - 1,574,051 2,893,402

() Marked risk

Market risk is the tisk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Branch's income will fuctuate because of changes in market factors, Market
risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk (due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates), interest rate risk (due te fluctuations in market
interest rates) and price risk {due to fluctuations of market prices).

(i} Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of cash flow uncertainty that may arise from a movement in foreign exchange rates to which the SBranch may be exposed.
The Branch Is primarily exposed to currency risk through its catastrophe reinsurance programme. The threshold at which reinsurance recoveries
can be claimed is expressed in Japanese Yen, A 1% sirengthening of the Yen against the New Zealand dollar would no longer resultin a
movement in the threshold at 31 March 2018, as curulative claims payments have now exceeded the reinsurance recovery threshold (2015;
$52,180).

{ji} Price risk

The Branch does not hold any securities that expose the Branch to price risk, or commodity price risk.

(i} Interest rate risk

The exposure to interest rate risk results from the helding of financial-assets in the normal course of business. Fixed interest rate assets create
exposure in respect of their fair value as interest rates move. Financial assets with floating interest rates create exposure in respect of uncertainty
in cash flows as interest rates move due to re-pricing.
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21 - Financial Risk Management {continued)

The following summarises the sensitivity of the Branch's Interest bearing financial assets and financial fabilities to interest rate risks.

Cash flow Sensitivity Analysis for Floating Rate Instruments

1% %
Carrying Amount ProfitEquity Profit/Equity
2016 $ § $
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 58,754,338 (597 543) 557,543
Interest Rate Risk
1% +1%
Carrylng Amount Profit/Equity ProflEquity
2015 H $ $
Financlal Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 63,359,475 {633,595) 633,585
Fair Vatue Sensitivity Analysis for Fixed Rate Instruments
Interest Rate Risk
-1% +1%
Carrylng Amount Proflt/Equity Profit/Equity
2016 $ $ $
Financlal Assets
Investment in Government $tock - - -
Interest Rate Risk
1% #1%
Carrying Amount ProfittEquity ProfitEquity
2015 $ $ $
Financial Assets
Investment in Government Stock 500,800 5,000 {4,950)
Analysis of Financlal AssetsiLiabilities
The analysis of financial assets and liabilities into their categories and classes fs et out in the following table.
Loans and Falr Value through
Total Receivables Profit and Loss
2016 $ $ $
Financlal Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 59,754,339 59,754,339 -
Investment in Government Stock - - -
Premium Receivables 1,530,360 1,580,360 -
Other Current Assets - Accrued Income 52,143 52,143 -
Reinsurance Receivable 3,418,220 3,418,220 -
Total 64,155,062 64,755,062 -
Falr Value through Financizl Liabilities
Total Profit and Loss at armortised cost
$ $ $
Financial Liabilitles
Accounts Payable - Trade Creditors and Accruals 320,474 - 320474 °
Reinsurance Payable 765,869 - 785,869
Due to Related Parties 2,352,945 - 2,352,945
Total 3,439,288 - 3,439,288

Interest Rate Risk

20
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21 Financial Risk Management {continued)

Loans and Fair Value through

Total Receivables Profitand Loss
2015 $ $ $
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 63,359,475 63,359,475 -
Investment in Government Stock 500,000 - 500,000
Premium Recslvables 1,748,730 1,748,730 -
Other Current Assets - Accrued Income 183,829 183,829 -
Reinsurance Receivable 834,645 834,645 -
Total 66,626,679 86,126,679 500,000

Fair Value through Financial Liabllitles

Total Profit and Loss  atamortised cost
$ $ $
Financial Liabilitles
Accounts Payable - Trade Creditors and Accruals 554,309 - 664,309
Reinsurance Payable 655,042 - 655,042
Due to Related Parties 1,674,051 - 1,574,051
Total 2,893,402 - 2,893,402

Fair Value of Financlal Instruments
Fair values of financial assets carried at fair value are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 - quoted market price
Financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets,

Levm_el 2 - valuation technique using observable inpuls

Financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quated prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive
markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 - valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs

Financial instruments valued using valuation techniques where ong or mere significant inpuls are unobservable.

The fair valse measurement of the investment in Govermment Stock Is classified as tevel 1 {2015 Jevel 1). Other financial assets and liabilites are
not measured at falr value through profit or loss. However, due to their short term (or discounted) nature, iheir ¢arrving amount is a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

22 Insurance Risk

The Branch has insurance confracts which transfer insurance risk from the policyholder to the Branch.

The insurance risk taken on by the Branch Is the possibility that an insured event occurs, when that event will accur and the uncenainty
surrounding the amount of any resulting claim. These risks are unprediciable, The Branch has estimated In these financlal statements the likely
amounts which are expecled to be paid out both in respect of claims incurred and expected fulure claims. The Branch is therefore at risk that the
carrying amounts of insurance liabilities and assets recognised in the financial statements will be exceeded by the amount of the actual claim. This
could ecour when there are more claims than expected or whera a claim is of a greater severity than expected,

The Branch has an underwriling process in place with set approval limits. The process is reviewed regularly.
Thers are no speclal ferms and conditions in any non-standard contracts that have a material impact on the financial statements.

The profit and less is not sensitive to changes In the welghted average term 1o setlement, inflation rate, nor discount rate due fo the short term
nature of the business written, If the length of the average tarm to settlement was longer this would have an effect on the resulis.
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22 Insurance Risk {continued)

(a) Concentration of insurance risk

The Branch's exposure is througheut New Zealand market. Specific processes for monltering identified concentrations are set out below;

Risk Source of toncentration

Inclusion of multiple classes of insurance [Response by a multitude of the Branch'’s policies to the one| Ensure appropriate levels of reinsurance
business in the one event event, material damage and business Interruption. are maintained at all times,

Risk management measures |

Maximurn acceptance limits, property risk
grading, risk accumulation processes
Including survey data base.

Fire or ¢ollapse affecting one building or a group of

Alarge property loss adjacent bulldings

An accumulation of risks arising from a Accumulation risk modelling, seinsurance

natural peril Insured property/stock concentrations In a centralised area profection

23 Actuarfal Assumptions and Methods

(a) Incurred claim setllement patterns

The outstanding claims fability for non-Canterbury earthquake claims has been determinad using either the incurred chain ladder or the
Bornhuetter-Fergusson (incurred claims) methodology. It has been assumed that incurred claims patterns for each group of business will continue
to follow observed histaric patterns.,

In respect of Canterbury earthquake claims, an individual claims assessment methodology was employed.

Qverall, the average weighted term to setlement of claims (cf all types, net of reinsurance) is approximately 12 months (2015: 12 months).

(b) Inflation and discount rates

Insurance costs are subject to Inflationary pressures over time, However, the pericd between the valuation date and the settlement of most claims
Is short, and the valuation implicitly allows for past levels of inflatfon to continue in the future. Therefore, the Impact on outstanding claims due to
increases in claims costs as a result of inflation, is limited,

In respect of Non-Canterbury earthquake claims, the short setllement period means the effect of discounting expecled future payments js limited.
These estimates have been discounted to allow for the fime value of money at a rate of 2.1% per annum {2015: 3.35%).

Canierbury ¢arthquake claims have not been discounted for the time value of money due to the unceriainties in settlement.

(c) Reinsurance

Cutstanding claims estimates have been calculated en both a gross and net of reinsurance basis. The level of catastrophe reinsurance recoveries
is affected by the threshold at which reinsurance recoveries can be claimed. This thresho!d ks denominated in Japanese Yen, further details of
which are in Nofe 21{c)(i).

(d) Expense allcwance

The estimates of outstanding ¢laims liabilities incorporate an allowanca for both the future direct and indirect costs associated with those claims,
Policy administration and claim handling expenses are based on an analysis of racent experience,

() Risk margin

The risk margin takes Inte account uncertainty within the estimates of outstanding claims for each type of risk insured and applying an allowance
for diversification across the portfolic. The percentage risk margin adopted is 28,8% (2015: 26.5%). This is largely driven by the risk margin
assumptions relating to the Canterbury earthquake claims,

The non-sarthquake risk margins for both outstanding claims and liability adequacy testing have been reviewed as part of the 2016 valuation and
are based on stochastic medelling techniques. They have been determined allowing for diversification between groups of business and having
regard to the [nherent variation observed in claims development in each group of business. The earthquake risk margins are comprised of two
components; a claim by claim assessment for events that are below the catasirophe retention, and an afflowance for exchange rate movements
asseciated with the February 2011 event. These exclude any allowance for diversification. The undiversified risk margins for each group of
business are applied to the net central estimates and the results aggregated, allowing for diversification, in crder to arrive at an overall net
provision that is intended to provide a probability of sufficiency of 75% (2015: 75%).
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23 Actuarlal Assumptions and Methods {continued)

() Impact of changes in assumptions

The table below illustrates how changes in key assumptions would impact on reported profit and net outstanding claims liabilities of the Branch,

Varlable Movement in
variable 2016 2015
+1%
Discount Rate % N > {11,883} (2:351)
1% 12,123 2,401
IBNR Tail Strengthenin +1% p.a. for 4
G a guarters 80,549 105,897
+1%
Risk Margin % oﬂ 131,789 159,234
-1% (131,789) {159,234)

{9) Actuarial informafion

John Smeed (Actuary, Finity) is the actuary who completed the Insurance Liability Valuation Report. He is a Fellow of the New Zealand Society of
Actuarles. The actuarial calculations were completed in accordance with New Zealand Society of Actuaries Professlional Standard No.4. The
effactive date of the actuary’s reportis 31 March 2016. '

The actuary is satisfied as to the nalure, sufficiency and aceuracy of the data used to determine the outstanding claims liability, and there were no
qualifications contained in the actuarial report. The key assumptions used in the compilation of the reserves as at 31 March 2016 are outlined in
the note listed above.

The actuary has no financlal interest In the Branch.

24 Events Occurring After Reporting Date

There are no matiers past balance date that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect, ihe results of the Branch's operations for the year
ended 31 March 2016 or the Branch's financial position as at 31 March 2018,

:
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Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholder of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited -
New Zealand Branch

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company
Limited - New Zealand Branch ("the Branch") on pages 3 to 23. The financial statements comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the statement of comprehensive income,
movements in head office account and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

This report is made solely to the sharehoider as a body. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Branch’s sharecholder those matters we are required to state to them in
the auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Branch’s shareholder as a body, for our
audit work, this report or any of the opinions we have formed.

Directors' responsibility for the financial statements

The directors are responsible on behalf of the Branch for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in New
Zealand (being New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards) and
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand).
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Jjudgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Branch’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Branch's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as evaluating the presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Our firm has also provided other services to the Branch in relation to taxation services. Subject to
certain restrictions, partners and employees of our firm may also deal with the Branch on normal
terms within the ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the Branch. These matters
have not impaired our independence as auditor of the Branch, The firm has no other relationship
with, or interest in, the Branch.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 3 to 23 comply with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand and present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch as at 31 March
2016 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards and International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 4 and 13 to the financial statements which explain the considerable
uncertainties that exist in measuring outstanding claims liabilities and reinsurance recoveries
arising from the Canterbury earthquakes which occurred during the preceding years. Our opinion
is not qualified in respect of this matter.

KPMG

18 July 2016
Auckland
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18 July 2016

The Directors

Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited
C/- Nancy George

Auckland

New Zealand

Dear Directors

Review of Actuarial Information contained in Financial Statements as at 31 March 2016
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited

Finity Consulting Pty Limited (Finity) has been asked by Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company
Limited, New Zealand Branch (Mitsui NZ) to carry out a review of, and report on, actuarial
information contained in the financial statements of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited
(MSI) as at 31 March 2016, as required under sections 77 and 78 of the Insurance (Prudential
Supervision) Act 2010,

This report has been prepared by John Smeed, an employee of Finity and the Appointed Actuary to
Mitsui NZ. Finity has no relationship with Mitsui NZ or MS! apart from the Appointed Actuary roles
in New Zealand and Australia.

Actuarial Information

Mitsui NZ has been granted exemption under Section 59 of the Insurance (Prudential Supervision)
Act 2010, which applies to overseas insurers of approved jurisdictions.

We have relied upon the work undertaken by members of MSI staff in Japan in the preparation and
review of the actuarial information contained in MS/I’s financial statements. We have sought and
been provided with appropriate assurances by MSI management that the actuarial information has
been prepared in accordance with accepted principles and methods.

This review is being provided for the sole use of Mitsui NZ for the purpose stated above in order to
comply with the requirements of section 77 and 78 of the Act. It is not intended, nor necessarily

suitable, for any other purpose and should only be relied on for the purpose for which it is intended.

Yours sincerely

cta g

hn Sme Al Samu

Appointed Actuary
Fellows of the New Zealand Society of Actuaries

Meon 18 July 2016 10:15 AM
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Actuarial and Insurance Consultants

18 July 2016

The Directors

Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited
C/- Nancy George

Auckland

New Zealand

Dear Directors

Review of Actuarial Information contained in Financial Statements as at 31 March 2016
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand Branch

Finity Consulting Pty Limited (Finity) has been asked by Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company
Limited, New Zealand Branch (Mitsui NZ) to carry out a review of the 31 March 2016 actuarial
information contained in the financial statements and provide an opinion as to its appropriateness.
John Smeed is an employee of Finity and is the Appointed Actuary to Mitsui NZ. Finity has no
relationship with Mitsui NZ apart from the Appointed Actuary role.

Mitsui NZ’s policy is to seek and adopt the advice of the Appointed Actuary in respect of the
actuarial infermation contained in its financial statements. We confirm that the financial statements
as at 31 March 2016 have been prepared in accordance with this policy, and as such this satisfies
the requirements of the Act.

Having carried out our actuarial review nothing has come to our attention that would lead us to
believe that the actuarial information contained in the financial statements for Mitsui NZ as at 31
March 20186 is inappropriate.

This review is being provided for the sole use of Mitsui NZ for the purpose stated above. Itis not
intended, nor necessarily suitable, for any other purpose and should only be relied on for the
purpose for which it is intended.

Yours sincerely

pu,’if'CL x

ohn Smee Anita Samu

Appointed Actuary
Fellows of the New Zealand Society of Actuaries

Mon 18 July 2016 10:14 AM
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance
Company, Limited, which comprise the balance sheets as of March 31, 2015 and 2016, and the
statements of income and statements of changes in net assets for the years then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, while the objective of the
financial statement audit is not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited as of March 31, 2015 and 2016, and
their financial performance for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Japan.

PG ABRSA 2L

June 22, 2016
Tokyo, Japan

KPMG AZSA LLC, a limited fiability audit coporation incorporated under
1ha Japanese Certified Public Accountants Law and a member firm of the
KPMG network of independent mamber firms affiliated with KPMG
International Cooperativa ["KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Balance Sheets

As of March 31, 2015 and 2016

Assets

Assets
Cash, deposits and savings:
Cash on hand
Deposits in banks
Total cash, deposits and savings

Call loans

Receivables under resale agreements
Monetary claims bought

Money trusts

Investments in securities:
Government bonds
Municipal bonds
Corporate bonds
Stock
Foreign securities
Other securitics
Total investments in securities

Loans:
Policy loans
General loans
Total loans

Tangible fixed assets:
Land
Buildings
Construction in progress
Other tangible fixed assets
Total tangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets:
Software
Other intangible fixed assets
Total intangible fixed assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2015

2016

{Yen in millions)

124 133
214.906 442,420
215,030 442,553

40,000 ;
36,497 29,999
95,949 28,785
12,913 11,564
1,419,581 1,278,847
96,178 91,948
522,086 494,579
2,247,738 1,756,599
896,805 1,525,945
22.996 25.817
5205386 5,173,738
8,953 8,242
489.686 _ 440.424
498,639 448,667
85,729 77,690
130,824 127,253
1,327 33
10.679 11,006
228,560 215,984
28,784 23,485
20,877 19,554
49,661 43,039
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Balance Sheets {Continued)

2015 2016
(Yen in millions)
Other assets:
Premiums receivable ¥ 4,145 3,068
Due from agencies 113,039 114,336
Co-insurance accounts receivable 6,405 7,263
Reinsurance accounts receivable 55,826 58,020
Foreign reinsurance accounts receivable 39,437 30,399
Agency business accounts receivable 237 583
Other receivables 27,724 26,530
Accrued income 6,230 6,260
Guarantee deposits 11,730 11,530
Deposits with Japan Earthquake Reinsurance Co., Ltd. 10,584 11,286
Suspense payments 41,454 36,111
Derivative financial instruments 44,147 42,639
Other assets 1.179 1,038
Total other assets 362,144 349,567
Customers’ liabilities under acceptances and guarantees 52,214 45,803
Bad debt reserve (6.977) (3.115)
Total assets ¥ _ 6790021 _ 6,786,590

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Balance Sheets (Continued)

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities
Policy liabilities:
Outstanding claims
Underwriting reserves
Total policy liabilities

Bonds issued

Other liabilities:

Co-insurance accounts payable
Reinsurance accounts payable
Foreign reinsurance accounts payable
Agency business accounts payable
Borrowings
Income taxes payable
Deposits received
Unearned income
Other payables
Suspense receipts
Derivative financial instruments
Cash collateral received under derivative transactions
Lease obligations
Asset retirement obligations
Other liabilities

Total other liabilities

Reserve for pension and retirement benefits
Reserve for retirement benefits for officers
Accrued bonuses for employees
Reserves under the special laws:
Reserve for price fluctuation
Total reserves under the special laws
Deferred tax liabilities

Acceptances and guarantees

Total liabilities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2015

2016

(Yen in millions)

640913 649,729
3.314.789 _ 3.344.890
3,955,703 3,994,619

176,188 256,191

10,561 10,935
59,080 59,230
29,780 22,171
36 24
100,000 296,767
6,508 31,780
19,344 18,212
90 43
46,583 46,819
21,527 24,236
2,405 5,160
106,136 87,988
1,185 903
3,710 3,765
501 2,745
407453 610,785
137,329 135,688
912 761
12,387 11,716
60,519 64,133
60,519 64,133
254567 139,408
52214 45,803
5,057.276 _ 5.259.108
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Balance Sheets (Continued)

Net Assets
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock

Capital surplus;
Additional paid-in capital
Total capital surplus

Retained earnings:
Legal earned reserve
Other retained earnings:
Tax-exempted reserve for accelerated depreciation
Retained earnings brought forward
Total other retained earnings

Total retained earnings
Total shareholders’ equity
Valuation and translation adjustments:
Net unrealized gains/(losses) on investments in securities
Net deferred gains/(losses) on hedges
Total valuation and translation adjustments

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2015

2016

(Yen in millions)

¥ 139,595 139,595
93.107 93,107
93,107 93,107
46,487 46,487
15,406 16,012

232,779 290,143
248,185 306,156
294,673 352,644
527,376 585,347
1,173,227 902,019
32,140 40.113
1,205,368 942,133
1,732,745 _ 1,527,481

¥ _ 6,790,021 _ 6,786,590
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Statements of Income

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016

Ordinary income and expenses
Ordinary income:

Underwriting income:
Net premiums written ¥
Deposit premiums from policyholders
Investment income on deposit premiums from
policyholders
Reversal of outstanding claims
Foreign exchange gains
Other underwriting income
Total underwriting income

Investment income:
Interest and dividends income
Investment gains on money trusts
Gains on sales of securities
Gains on redemption of securities
Gains on derivative transactions
Foreign exchange gains
Other investment income
Transfer of investment income on deposit
premiums from policyholders
Total investment income

Other ordinary income
Total ordinary income

Ordinary expenses:
Underwriting expenses:

Net claims paid
Loss adjustment expenses
Commissions and collection expenses
Maturity refunds to policyholders
Dividends to policyholders
Provision for outstanding claims
Provision for underwriting reserves
Foreign exchange losses
Other underwriting expenses

Total underwriting expenses

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2015

2016

(Yen in millions)

1,444,176 1,507,157
104,342 84,712
39,981 37,567
11,397 -
6,284 -
682 259
1,606,863 1,629,696
110,618 116,990
1,268 739
90,115 102,149
1,658 541
1,078 3,466
9,163 ;
603 1,095
(39.981) _ (37.567)
174,526 187,416
6.197 5,645
1,787,587 1,822,757
810,853 800,899
88,020 87,427
253,813 263,136
210,769 211,446
796 967

- 8,815

21,569 30,101

- 1,851

484 619
1,386,306 1,405,264
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Statements of Income (Continued)

Investment expenses:
Investiment losses on money trusts
Losses on sales of securities
Impairment losses on securities
Losses on redemption of securities
Foreign exchange losses
Other investment expenses

Total investment expenses

Operating expenses and general and administrative expenses

Other ordinary expenses:
Interest expense
Losses on bad debts
Other ordinary expenses
Total other ordinary expenses

Total ordinary expenses
Ordinary profit/(loss)
Extraordinary income and losses
Extraordinary income:

Gains on sales of fixed assets
Other extraordinary income

Total extraordinary income
Extraordinary losses:
Losses on sales of fixed assets
Impairment losses on fixed assets
Provision for reserves under the special laws:
Provision for reserve for price fluctuation
Total provision for reserves under the special laws
Other extraordinary losses
Total extraordinary losses
Income/(loss) before income taxes
Income taxes-current
Income taxes-deferred

Total income taxes

Net income/(loss)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2015

2016

(Yen in millions)

- 536

57 3,004
3,378 7,292
250 425

- 9,825

4373 5.652
8,059 26,738
215,765 215,144
5,888 6,173

1 4

237 1,535
6.128 7.713
1,616259 _ 1,654,861
171,328 167,896
8,523 1,782
1,800 -
10,323 1,782
1,862 520
1,400 8,294
40,788 3,613
40,788 3,613
: 1,139
44051 13.567
137,599 156,111
9,702 37,305
38.782 4,835
48,485 42,140
89,114 113,970
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016

2015

(Yen in millions)

Shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

g;:%ilt:; Retained eamings
Other retained eamings Total
Common stock | » gaitional Legal camned | Tax-exempted | Retained Shaze]::?:ders
paid-in capital | reserve reserve for carmings auity
accelerated brought
depreciation forward
Beginning balance ¥ 139,595 93,107 46,487 15,385 178,484 473,061
Changes for the year
Provision for tax-exempted reserve
) 411 (411 -
for accelerated depreciation
Reversal of tax-exerpp:[ed reserve for (390) 390 }
accelerated depreciation
Dividends paid (34,798) (34,798)
Net income/(loss) 39,114 89,114
Net changes of items other than
shareholders’ equity
Total changes for the year - - 20 54,295 54,315
Ending balance ¥ 138,595 93,107 46,487 13,406 232,779 527,376
Valuation and translation adjustments
Net unrealized
gains/(losses) Net d/elferred Total net assets
on investments gzggsh(etc;sgzs)
in securities &
Beginning balance ¥ 813,116 23,430 1,309,608
Changes for the year
Provision for tax-exempted reserve )
for accelerated depreciation
Reversal of tax-exempted reserve for ;
accelerated depreciation
Dividends paid (34,798)
Net income/(loss) 89,114
Net changes o,f items other than 360,110 8,709 368,820
shareholders’ equity
Total changes for the year 360,110 8,709 423,136
Ending balance ¥ 1,173,227 32,140 1,732,745
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Statements of Changes in Net Assets (Continued)

2016
(Yen in millions)
Shareholders’ equity
Capital Retained eamings
surplus
Other retained earnings Total
Common stock Additional | Legal eamed Tax-exempted Reta.incd Sharchcfldcrs
paid-in capital reserve reserve for carnings equity
accelerated brought
depreciation forward
Beginning balance ¥ 139,595 93,107 46,487 15,406 232,779 527,376
Changes for the year
Provision for tax-exempted reserve
L 876 876 -
for accelerated depreciation (876)
Reversal of tax-exempted reserve for 270) 270 i
accelerated depreciation
Dividends paid (55,999) (53,999)
Net income/(loss) 113,970 113,970
Net changes of items other than
shareholders’ equity
Total changes for the year - - - 606 57,364 57,970
Ending balance ¥ 139,595 93,107 46,487 16,012 290,143 585,347
Valuation and translation adjustments
Net unrealized
gains/(losses) Net deferred Total net assets
on investments gamsl.i(lgsses)
in securities on hecges
Beginning balance ¥ 1,173,227 32,140 1,732,745
Changes for the year
Provision for tax-exempted reserve .
for accelerated depreciation
Reversal of tax-exempted reserve for )
accelerated depreciation
Dividends paid (55,99%)
Net income/(loss) 113,970
Net changes of items other than
shareholders’ equity (271,207) 7,973 (263,234)
Total changes for the year (271,207 7,973 (205,263)
Ending balance ¥ 902,019 40,113 1,527,481

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
Significant Items for Presenting Financial Statements

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016

Basis of presentation

The accompanying non-consolidated financial statements have been translated from the
non-consolidated financial statements of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Company™) prepared in accordance with the provisions set
forth in the Corporate Accounting Regulations, the Enforcement Regulations of the Japanese
Insurance Business Act and related rules, and regulations applicable to the non-life insurance
industry in general, and in conformity with accounting principles and practices generally
accepted in Japan, which may differ in certain respects from accounting principles and
practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Japan.

The accompanying non-consolidated financial statements are expressed in Japanese yen. As
permitted by the regulations under the Corporate Accounting Regulations, amounts are
rounded down to the nearest million of Japanese yen, except for those stated otherwise. Asa
result, the totals shown in the accompanying non-consolidated financial statements in
Japanese yen do not necessarily agree with the sums of the individual amounts.

Accounting policies
Valuation policies and methods of securities (including those included in Cash, deposits and
savings, and Monetary claims bought, as set forth in the Enforcement Regulations of the

Japanese Insurance Business Act)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries and associates are valued at cost determined by the moving
average method.

(b) Awvailable-for-sale securities (except for those without practically determinable fair
value) are valued at their year-end market prices.
Net unrealized gains and losses are reported as a separate line item of net assets, and cost
of sales is calculated by the moving average method.

(c) Available-for-sale securities without practically determinable fair value are valued at
cost using the moving average method.

(d) Money trusts which are specifically managed for the Company for trading purposes are
valued at their year-end market prices. Money trusts which are specifically managed for
the Company, other than money trusts held for trading purposes and money trusts held to
maturity, are valued on the same basis as available-for-sale securities.

Valuation policies and methods of derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are valued at fair value.

Depreciation methods of tangible fixed assets

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets is computed using the straight-line method.

(Changes in accounting policies which are difficult to distinguish from accounting estimates)

The Company has changed the depreciation method of tangible fixed assets from the
declining-balance method to the straight-line method since the year ended March 31, 2016.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Significant Items for Presenting Financial Statements (Continued)

Previously, depreciation of tangible fixed assets held by the Company was computed using
the declining-balance method, except for buildings (excluding fixtures) acquired on or after
April 1, 1998, to which the straight-line method was applied.

MS&AD Insurance Group to which the Company belongs has been endeavoring to enhance
the efficiency of its business management as a group and expand its international business
with an aim to become one of the top global insurance and financial groups since April 1,
2010, when it was established. MS&AD Insurance Group has also moved forward with the
reorganization by function as planned in “Next Challenge 2017” medium-term management
plan, and most of the individual reorganization plans had been put in practice by the end of the
previous year.

With the reorganization by function taking place, MS&AD Insurance Group reviewed its

accounting policies including those applied by overseas subsidiaries and determined that it is

more appropriate to adopt the straight-line depreciation method for tangible fixed assets for
the following reasons:

(a) After the reorganization by function, it is expected that tangible fixed assets held by the
Company will be used stably over their useful lives. Therefore, by adopting the
straight-line method, in which an equal amount of expenses is recognized over useful
lives of tangible fixed assets, it is considered that the actual usage of tangible fixed assets
will be more appropriately reflected in profit and loss for each reporting period.

(b) By adopting the straight-line method, MS&AD Group will be able to unify accounting
policies applied by domestic consolidated subsidiaries with those applied by overseas
consolidated subsidiaries that have been using the straight-line method, and be able to
provide more useful financial information.

As a result of the change, Ordinary profit/(loss) and Income /(loss) before income taxes
increased by ¥3,217 million, compared with the amounts calculated by the previous
accounting method.

Depreciation methods of intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are amortized by the straight-line method. Capitalized software for
internal use is amortized by the straight-line method over its estimated useful life (5 years).

Translation of foreign currency assets and liabilities

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Japanese yen in accordance

with the provisions of the Accounting Standard for Foreign Currency Transactions.

Accounting policies for reserves

(i) Bad debt reserve

Bad debt reserve is established under the internal standards for self-assessment of assets and
the policy for write-off and provision. Bad debt reserve for loans to debtors who are legally
deemed to be insolvent due to bankruptcy or special liquidation, or whose notes are under
suspension at clearing houses, and loans to debtors who are deemed to be substantially
insolvent is provided based on the outstanding balance remaining after deducting the resale

value of collateral and the amount collectible through guarantees.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Significant Items for Presenting Financial Statements (Continued)

Bad debt reserve for loans to debtors who are likely to become insolvent in the future is
provided based on the outstanding balance remaining after deducting the resale value of
collateral, the amount collectible through guarantees and the amount expected to be repaid
by the debtors considering their overall ability to pay.

For loans other than those described above, bad debt reserve is calculated by multiplying the
outstanding balances by the historical bad debt ratios.

Bad debt reserve for ali loans and receivables is provided based on the assessment under the
internal standards for self-assessment of assets. The assessment is performed by
departments which are responsible for respective assets and the results are reviewed by the
independent internal audit departments.

(ii) Reserve for pension and retirement benefits

Reserve for pension and retirement benefits is established to provide for future retirement
benefits based on the estimated retirement benefit obligations and plan assets at the
year-end.

(a) Attribution method of retirement benefits over the service period

In computing retirement benefit obligations, the estimated retirement benefits are
attributed to the periods up to the current year using the plan’s benefit formula.

(b) Actuarial gains and losses and past service costs

Actuarial gains and losses are amortized, commencing from the following year, using the
straight-line method over a certain number of years (10 years) that do not exceed the
expected average remaining service period of the employees at the time of occurrence.

Past service costs are amortized using the straight-line method over a certain number of
years (4 years) that do not exceed the average remaining service period of employees at
the time of occurrence.

(iii) Reserve for retirement benefit for officers

Reserve for retirement benefits that covers the cost for services rendered by officers and
operating officers of the Company up to the year ended March 31, 2005, the date in which
the retirement benefit plans for officers were terminated, is established based on the
estimated amounts to be paid at the year-end to provide for future retirement benefits
(including pension) for officers and operating officers of the Company.

(iv) Accrued bonuses for employees

Accrued bonuses for employees are determined based on the estimated amounts to be paid at
the year-end to provide for future bonuses for employees and operating officers.

(v) Reserve for price fluctuation

Reserve for price fluctuation is recognized under Article 115 of the Insurance Business Act
to provide for possible losses arising from price fluctuation of investment assets such as
equity securities.
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MITSUL SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Significant Items for Presenting Financial Statements (Continued)

(7) Hedge accounting

Under accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”), scveral
methodologies are allowed for hedge accounting. Two fundamental approaches are the deferred
hedge method and the fair value hedge method. Under the deferred hedge method, gains and
losses on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments are deferred and accounted for
as a separate line item of net assets. Under the fair value hedge method, which is allowed only
with respect to available-for-sale securities being the hedged items, gains and losses on changes
in fair value of the hedging instruments, are recognized in earnings together with the
corresponding gains or losses on the hedged items attributable to the risks being hedged.

In addition, for certain derivative financial instruments, alternative treatments are permitted
under Japanese GAAP. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and hedged by
foreign exchange forward contracts or currency swaps can be accounted for by the allocation
method. Under this method, the foreign exchange forward contracts and currency swaps used as
hedging instruments are not measured at fair value, since gains and losses on the derivatives are
assumed to be offset with changes in fair value of the corresponding hedged items and hedged
items are translated at the foreign exchange rates that are stipulated in the foreign exchange
forward contracts or currency swaps (hedging instruments). Interest rate swaps that qualify for
hedge accounting and meet specific matching criteria are not remeasured at fair value, but the
differentials paid or received under the swap agreements are recognized and included in interest
expense or income of the hedged items (the exceptional method).

Gains and losses on equity forward contracts used for hedging risks of variability in the fair value
of investments in equity securities are accounted for under the deferred hedge method.

Gains and losses on currency swap contracts and certain foreign exchange forward contracts
used for hedging risks of variability in foreign exchange rates on foreign currency assets are
accounted for under the deferred hedge method, the fair value hedge method or the allocation
method. Gains and losses on currency swap contracts used for hedging risks of variability in
foreign exchange rates on foreign currency bonds issued by the Company are accounted for
under the allocation method.

Interest rate swap contracts for hedging risks of variability in the interest rates of loans, bonds
and borrowings are accounted for under the deferred hedge method or the exceptional method
when they meet certain criteria.

Gains and losses on interest rate and currency swap contracts used for hedging risks of
variability in foreign exchange rates and interest rates on foreign currency borrowings are
accounted for under the integrated method when they meet certain criteria. The integrated
method is to hedge foreign exchange risks and interest rate risks using the allocation method and
the exceptional method, respectively.

Hedge effectiveness is assessed quarterly by comparing cumulative fluctuations in fair value or
cash flows of the hedged items and hedging instruments for the periods from the respective start
dates of the hedges to the assessment dates. When the hedged items and the hedging instruments
are highly and clearly interrelated, when the interest rate swap transactions meet the criteria for
application of the exceptional method, or when the interest rate and currency swap transactions
meet the criteria for application of the integrated method, hedge effectiveness is not assessed.

Certain interest rate swap contracts used for the ALM (Asset and Liability Management) to

41
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Significant Items for Presenting Financial Statements (Continued)

ensure adequate control of the risks of interest rate variability are accounted for under the
deferred hedge method and assessed for hedge effectiveness in accordance with the Industry
Audit Committee Report No. 26 “Accounting and Auditing Treatment of Application of the
Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments in the Insurance Industry” (issued by the
Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants on September 3, 2002). The hedge
effectiveness of interest rate swaps used for the ALM is evaluated on a portfolio basis, based on
whether upward and downward movements in value of the hedged items and the hedging
instruments offset each other within a certain range, in respect to changes in the interest rates.

Other significant items for preparation of financial statements
(i) Accounting for retirement benefits

The accounting treatment for unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and unrecognized past
service costs related to retirement benefits in non-consolidated financial statements differs
from those in consolidated financial statements.

(ii) Accounting for consumption taxes

Consumption taxes received or paid are not included in income or expenses, except for those
relating to Loss adjustment expenses and Operating expenses and general and administrative
expenses, Consumption taxes excluded from income and expenses are recorded at the net
amount on the balance sheet. Non-deductible consumption taxes are recognized as expenses
for the period, except for those relating to purchase of depreciable fixed assets which are not
charged to expenses but deferred as Suspense payments and amortized over a period of five
years on a straight-fine basis.

42
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Notes to Balance Sheets

The amounts of investments in securities loaned under securities lending agreements are as
follows:

{Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016

59,600 109,244

(Note) The amounts in the above table are included in Stock and Foreign securities under
Investments in securities as of March 31, 2015 and in Stock and Foreign securities under
Investments in securities as of March 31, 2016.

The amounts of loans to borrowers in bankruptcy, overdue loans, loans overdue for 3 months or
more and restructured loans are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015 March 31,2016

Loans to borrowers in bankruptcy 3 1
Overdue loans 370 161
Loans overdue for 3 months or more 501 587
Restructured loans 556 516
Total 1,432 1,265

(Note) Loans to borrowers in bankruptcy represent those, excluding any part of bad debts that
have been written off, on which accrued interest receivables are not recognized because
repayments of the principal or interest have been overdue for considerable periods and
regarded uncollectible (hereinafter, this category is referred to as “Loans not accruing
interest™) and which meet the conditions prescribed in Article 96, Section 1-3 or 1-4 of
the Corporation Tax Act Enforcement Ordinance (Cabinet Order No.97, 1965).

Overdue loans represent loans not accruing interest excluding (a) loans to borrowers in
bankruptcy and (b} loans that have been granted a grace period for interest payments in
order to assist the debtors’ operational restructuring or financial recovery.

Loans overdue for 3 months or more represent those of which the principal or interest
has been past due for 3 months or more after the contractual due date for repayments of
the principal or interest. The loans to borrowers in bankruptcy and overdue loans are
excluded from this category.

Restructured loans represent those which have been granted favorable terms for the
benefit of the debtors, such as interest exemption or reduction, a grace period for interest
payments, a grace period for principal repayments, or forgiveness of debts for the
purpose of the restructuring of, or support to the debtors in financial difficulty. The loans
to borrowers in bankruptey, overdue loans and loans overdue for 3 months or more are
excluded from this category.

A3
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Notes to Balance Sheets (Continued)

‘The amounts of accumulated depreciation and accelerated depreciation of tangible fixed assets
are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016

Accumulated depreciation 272,376 275,821
Accelerated depreciation 14,649 14,418

(Note) As permitted under Japanese tax legislation for the purpose of deferral in recognizing
taxable income, acquisition cost of certain qualifying properties is reduced to offset the
taxable income that resulted from the sales of assets to be replaced by the acquired assets
or receipts of governmental subsidies provided for the acquisition of the new assets. The
total amounts deducted from the original acquisition cost of the qualifying properties
held by the Company as of March 31, 2015 and 2016 were ¥14,649 million and ¥14,418
million, respectively.

The total amounts receivable from and payable to affiliates are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016

Total amounts receivable 13,406 10,726
Total amounts payable 14,014 14,034

Significant components of Deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016

Deferred tax assets:

Underwriting reserves 124,996 123,802
Reserve for pension and retirement 39,550 37,043
benefits
Outstanding claims 19,220 21,106
Investments in securities 24,902 21,023
Reserve for price fluctuation 17,429 17,893
Software 12,538 12,375
Others 22,921 19.976
Total gross deferred tax assets 261,560 254,121
Less valuation allowance (22.971) (20,506)
Total net deferred tax assets 238,589 233,615
Deferred tax liabilities:
N_et unreahzec.l galns/(.I(.Jsses) on (472,034) (349.471)
investments 1n securities
Others (21.121) (23.552)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities (493.156) (373.024)
Total deferred tax liabilities net of (254,567) (139,408)

deferred tax assets
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Notes to Balance Sheets (Continued)

(Adjustments to deferred tax assets and liabilities and others due to changes in income tax rates)

In accordance with the “Act for Partial Revision of the Income Tax Act etc.” (Act No.15 of 2016)
enacted by the Diet on March 29, 2016, the corporate tax rates will be reduced from the year
commencing on or after April 1, 2016.

Accordingly, the statutory income tax rates to determine deferred tax assets and liabilities for
temporary differences expected to reverse in the years commencing on April 1, 2016 and 2017,
and those in the years commencing on or after April 1, 2018 are reduced from 28.8% to 28.2%
and 27.9%, respectively.

The effect of this change was increases in Net unrealized gains/(losses) on investments i
securities of ¥10,958 million and Income taxes—deferred of ¥6,718 million and decreases in
Underwriting reserves of ¥93 million, Deferred tax liabilities (net of Deferred tax assets) of
¥4,706 million, and Net income of ¥6,625 million.

Guarantees and similar arrangements for subsidiaries and associates

March 31, 2015

{Guarantees)

The Company provides a guarantee of ¥38,641 million to the insurance business operated by
MSI Corporate Capital Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

{Arrangements similar to guarantees)

The Company has net worth maintenance agreements with seven overseas subsidiaries of the
Company. Under these agreements, the Company provides a guarantee on liabilities under
insurance policies of these subsidiaries. The aggregate amount of Policy liabilities of these

companies was ¥285,482 million as of March 31, 2015.

March 31. 2016

(Guarantees)

The Company provides a guarantee of ¥50,888 million to the insurance business operated by
MSI Corporate Capital Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

(Arrangements similar to guarantees)

The Company has net worth maintenance agreements with seven overseas subsidiaries of the
Company. Under these agreements, the Company provides a guarantee on liabilities under
insurance policies of these subsidiaries. The aggregate amount of Policy liabilities of these
companies was ¥284,167 million as of March 31, 2016.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Notes to Balance Sheets (Continued)

The carrying amounts of equity investments in affiliates are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2016

Stock
Capital

432,973
18,296

1,074,237
17,927

8. The amounts of pledged assets are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2016

Cash, deposits and savings
Investments in securities

80,420

2,253
88,700

(Note) The amounts in the above table primarily consist of collateral assets required for
international operations and for Real Time Gross Settlement of the current account with

the Bank of Japan.

9.  Details of Qutstanding claims and Underwriting reserves are as follows:

(1) Details of Qutstanding claims are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
Gross outstanding claims (except for (b)) 673,275 704,339
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 85,702 108,158
Net (a} 587,573 596,180
Qutstanding claims relating to earthquakes and
compulsory automobile l;'gability ingurance (b) 33,340 53,548
Total (a) + (b) 640,913 649,729
(2) Details of Underwriting reserves are as follows:
(Yen in millions)
March 31, 2015 March 31,2016
Gross ordinary underwriting reserves 1,248,772 1,314,293
Reinsurance recoverable on underwriting
reserves 65,825 69,880
Net (a) 1,182,947 1,244,412
Gross refund reserves 1,466,277 1,369,269
Reinsurance recoverable on refund reserves 5 4
Net (b) 1,466,271 1,369,265
Other underwriting reserves (c) 665,569 731,212
Total {(a) + (b) + (c) 3,314,789 3,344,890
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Notes to Balance Sheets (Continued)

Business combination

(Business combination through acquisition)

The Company acquired shares of Amlin plc. {“Amlin™), a holding company which operates the
insurance business globally, mainly in the Lloyd’s insurance market in the UK. Amlin became a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and was rebranded to MS Amlin plc.

For details, please refer to “Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheets, 11. Business Combination”
of Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries.

The amounts of net assets per share are as follows:

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
Net assets per share (in Yen) 1,233.79 1,087.63
Amounts deducted from net assets {(Yen in
millions) - i
Outstanding common stock (in thousands of 1,404,402 1,404,402
shares)

The amounts of assets received as collateral under resale agreements and reinsurance
transactions which the Company has the right to sell or repledge are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016

Commercial papers 23,997 14,999
Securities 4,751 -

(Note) All commercial papers and securities above are held by the Company.
Guarantees on transactions conducted by a limited partnership entity are as follows:

March 31, 2015

The Company provides guarantees on transactions conducted by a limited partnership entity.
Aggregate net present value of these transactions was ¥271,594 million in a negative liability
position as of March 31, 2015. This amount was not included in Customers’ liabilities under
acceptances and guarantees or Acceptances and guarantees since there was no substantial
exposure.

March 31, 2016

The Company provides guarantees on transactions conducted by a limited partnership entity.
Aggregate net present value of these transactions was ¥202,597 million in a negative liability
position as of March 31, 2016. This amount was not included in Customers’ liabilities under
acceptances and guarantees or Acceptances and guarantees since there was no substantial
exposure.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Notes to Balance Sheets (Continued)

14. The unutilized balance of commitment lines to third parties are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
295 -

15. “Subsidiary”, “Associate”, and “Affiliate” appearing elsewhere in the balance sheets and notes
thereto refer to those defined in Article 2 of the Corporate Accounting Regulations.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Notes to Statements of Income

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016

The aggregate amounts of income and expenses resulting from transactions with affiliates are as

follows:
(Yen in millions)
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
Income 53,050 59,561
Expenses 56,740 58,698

Details of Net premiums written are as follows:

{Yen in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31,2016
Gross premiums written 1,781,753 1,855,718
Less reinsurance premiums ceded 337,577 348,561
Net 1,444,176 1,507,157
Details of Net claims paid are as follows:
(Yen in millions)
For the yearended  For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31,2016
Gross claims paid 1,011,039 1,012,433
Less claim recoveries from reinsurance ceded 200,186 211,533
Net 810,853 800,899

Details of Commissions and collection expenses are as follows:

{Yen in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31,2016
Commissions and collection expenses paid 284,220 295,789
Less reinsurance commissions received 30,407 32,653
Net 253,813 263,136

Details of Provision for/(reversal of) outstanding claims are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
Gross provision for outstanding claims
(except for (b)) (4,935) 31,063
Less reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 8,008 22,455
Net (a) (12,944) 8,607
Provision for/(reversal of) outstanding claims
relating to earthquakes and compulsory 1,547 207
automobile liability insurance (b)
Total (a) + (b) (11,397) 8,815
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Notes to Statements of Income (Continued)

(5) Details of Provision for/(reversal of) underwriting reserves are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

For the year ended
March 31, 2015

For the year ended
March 31,2016

Gross provision for ordinary underwriting

reserves 61,988 65,520
Less reinsurance recoverable on underwriting
reserves 3,012 4,055
Net (a) 58,975 61,465
Provision for/(reversal of) refund reserves (75,052) (97,008)
Less reinsurance recoverable on refund
reserves {0) (1)
Net (b) (75,051) (97,006)
Reversal of other underwriting reserves (c) 37,645 65,642
Total (a) + (b) + (c) 21,569 30,101

(6} Details of Interest and dividends income are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

(Yen in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
7,031 (12,460)

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
Interest on deposits and savings 1,178 1,461
Interest on call loans 29 34
Interest on receivables under resale agreements 39 35
Interest on monetary claims bought 963 765
Interest and dividends income on investments
in securities 95,382 102,219
Interest on loans 7,522 6,234
Rental income on properties 5,387 6,135
Qther interest and dividends income 114 103
Total 110,618 116,990
The total valuation gains/(losses) included in Investment gains and losses on money trusts are as
follows:
(Yen in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31,2016
1,064 (1,603)

The total valuation gains/(losses) included in Gains on derivative transactions are as follows:
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Notes to Statements of Income (Continued)

4.  The amounts of net income/(loss) per share are as follows:

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016

Net income/(loss) per share (in Yen) 63.45 81.15
Net 1ncgme/_(l<_)ss) attributable to common stock 89,114 113,970
(Yen in millions)
Averagc? outstanding common shares during the 1,404,402 1,404,402
year (in thousands of shares)
(Notes)

1. Since there was no potential dilution for the year ended March 31, 2015, diluted net
income/(loss) per share is not disclosed.

2. Since there was no potential dilution for the year ended March 31, 2016, diluted net
income/(loss) per share is not disclosed.
5. Details of Other extraordinary income are as follows:

For the vear ended March 31, 2015

In accordance with the reorganization by function that was agreed among MS&AD Insurance
Group Holdings, Inc., the parent company of the Company, and its insurance subsidiaries
including the Company, the Company received cash or recognized receivable from other
MS&AD insurance group companies in consideration for the transfer of certain future insurance

businesses.
(Yen in millions
Counterparty Description of transferred business Amount of
P P consideration

Long-term care and medical insurance
contracts newly written on and after 1,000
April 1, 2014

Insurance contracts through motor
channel agencies newly written on and 400
after October 1, 2014

Insurance contracts newly written at
certain sales offices on and after October 400
1,2014

Mitsui Sumitomo Aioi Life
Insurance Co., Ltd.

Aioi Nissay Dowa Insurance
Co., Ltd.

6. Details of Other extraordinary losses are as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2016

Other extraordinary losses represent system-related costs that were recognized by the
reorganization by function.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Notes to Statements of Income (Continued)

7. Reconciliation of the statutory income tax rate to the effective income tax rate is as follows:

(%)
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
Statutory income tax rate 30.7 28.8
Increase/(decrease) from:
Tax exempted dividends income (6.7) (5.9
Effects of changes in income tax rate 11.0 43
Increase/(decrease) in valuation allowance 0.9 (1.2)
Others 1.1 1.0
Effective income tax rate 35.2 27.0
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Notes to Statements of Income (Continued)

Related party transactions are as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2015

Company Voting Amounts Balances
Category rights Relationship Transactions (Yen in Account (Yen in
fame (%) millions} millions)
Temporary transfer of
director
Credit guarantee
related to consumer
NEIJSO‘?:HAD loans provided by Debt guarantee
Subsidiary of| Services _ the Company related to 99,579 ) }
the parent Compan Administrative transactions with ’
company ompany, service related to third parties
Limited housing loan
guarantee insurance
underwritten by the
Company

MS&AD Loan Services Company Limited (“MS&AD Loan Services”) provides the guarantee
mainly for the Company’s housing loans that are executed to third party customers. Transaction
amounts represent guaranteed amounts outstanding as of March 31, 2015.

Terms and conditions of transactions and the policy to determine terms and conditions are as
follows:

The Company and MS&AD Loan Services have a comprehensive guarantee contract where the
Company receives guarantee services from MS&AD Loan Services for loans provided by the
Company to third party debtors, Terms and conditions of the guarantee contract are determined
based on each type of the loans to third parties.

For the year ended March 31, 2016

Company Voting ) ) Amour_ns Balanc_es
Category name rights Relatienship Transactions (Yen in Account (Yenin
(%) millions) millions)
Temporary transfer of
director
Credit guarantee
retated to consumer
) N:_So‘g‘:D loans provided by Debt guarantee
Subsidiary of| Services B the Company related to 86.627 } ;
the parent Company, Administrative transactions with ’
company P ’ service related to third parties
Limited housing loan
guarantee insurance
underwritten by the
Company

MS&AD Loan Services Company Limited (“MS&AD Loan Services™) provides the gnarantee
mainly for the Company’s housing loans that are executed to third party customers. Transaction
amounts represent guaranteed amounts outstanding as of March 31, 2016.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

Notes to Statements of Income (Continued)

Terms and conditions of transactions and the policy to determine terms and conditions are as
follows:

The Company and MS&AD Loan Services have a comprehensive guarantee contract where
the Company receives guarantee services from MS&AD Loan Services for loans provided by
the Company to third party debtors. Terms and conditions of the guarantee contract are
determined based on each type of the loans to third parties.

“Parent company”, “Subsidiary” and “Affiliate” appearing elsewhere in the statements of
income and notes thereto refer to those defined in Article 2 of the Corporate Accounting
Regulations.
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To the Board of Directors of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited:

Independent Auditor’s Report

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mitsui Sumitomo
Insurance Company, Limited and its consolidated subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheets as of March 31, 2015 and 2016, and the consolidated statements of income,
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in net assets and statements of cash
flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or EITOr.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in Japan, Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, while the objective of the financial statement audit is not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited and its consolidated
subsidiaries as of March 31, 2015 and 2016, and their financial performance and cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

KPMEG A2SA LLC

June 22, 2016
Tokyo, Japan

KPMG AZSA LLC, & limited liability sudit corparation incorporated under
tha Japznese Certilied Public Accountants Law and a member firm of tha
KPMG network of independent membaer firms effiliated with KPMG

| ional C: iva {"KPMG Ir ional”), a Swiss entity.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Consclidated Balance Sheets

As of March 31, 2015 and 2016

Assets

Assets
Cash, deposits and savings
Call loans
Receivables under resale agreements
Monetary claims bought
Money trusts
Investments in securities
Loans
Tangible fixed assets:
Land
Buildings
Construction in progress
Other tangible fixed assets
Total tangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets:
Software
Goodwill
Other intangible fixed assets
Total intangible fixed assets

Other assets

Deferred tax assets

Customers’ liabilities under acceptances and guarantees
Bad debt reserve

Total assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

¥

2015

2016

(Yen in millions)

426,997 691,961
40,000 ;
36,497 29,999

102,423 90,694
13,048 11,664

5445215 5,462,625

498,658 448,697
93,498 85,703

136,297 135,924

1,972 1,097
13359 19.398

245,128 242.124
32,373 43,141
49,975 173,110
23.156 234,454

105,504 450,706

514,889 818,767

5,306 5,348
49,000 43,000
(8.654) (8.620)

7474016 __8.286,970

5%
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities
Policy liabilities:
Outstanding claims
Underwriting reserves
Total policy liabilities

Bonds issued

Other liabilities

Liabilities for pension and retirement benefits
Reserve for retirement benefits for officers
Accrued bonuses for employees

Reserves under the special laws:
Reserve for price fluctuation
Total reserves under the special laws

Deferred tax liabilities
Acceptances and guarantees

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock
Capital surplus
Retained earnings
Total shareholders’ equity

Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss):
Net unrealized gains/(losses) on investments in securities
Net deferred gains/(losses) on hedges
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Accumulated actuarial gains/(losses) on retirement benefits
Total accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss)

Non-controlling interests
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2015

2016

(Yen in millions)

909,232 1,372,046
3457475 _ 3.747.432
4366.708 _ 5.119.479

176,188 299,841

481,759 745,514

123,541 169,546

912 761
15,338 25,456
60.519 64.133
60,519 64.133

265,231 178,176

49,000 43,000
5,539.199 _ 6.645.909
139,595 139,595
86,722 86,722

366.290 446,006

592.608 672,324
1,182,736 904,253

32,140 40,113
89,349 19,053
10,030 (20,573)
1.314.256 942.848
27.952 25.888
1.934.817 _ 1.641.061
7474016 __ 8,286,970

5%
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016

2015

2016

(Yen in millions)

Ordinary income and expenses
Ordinary income:
Underwriting income:

Net premiums written ¥ 1,696,608 1,779,922
Deposit premiums from policyholders 104,342 84,712
Investment income on deposit premiums from
policyholders 39,981 37,567
Life insurance premiums 6,893 9.679
Reversal of outstanding claims 9,497 -
Other underwriting income 7.412 505
Total underwriting income 1,864,735 1.912.386
Investment income:
Interest and dividends income 115,532 120,530
Investment gains on money trusts 1,268 739
Gains on sales of securities 95,022 107,374
Gains on redemption of securities 1,699 610
Gains on derivative transactions - 19,820
Other investment income 11,090 3,136
Transfer of investment income on deposit premiums
from policyholders (39.981) (37.567)
Total investment income 184.632 214.645
Other ordinary income:
Gains on equity method investments 1,302 2,245
Other ordinary income 8.333 7.341
Total other ordinary income 9.635 9.587
Total ordinary income 2,059.003 2,136,619
Ordinary expenses:
Underwriting expenses:
Net claims paid 928,362 926,282
Loss adjustment expenses 95,470 95,656
Commissions and collection expenses 287,874 301,470
Maturity refunds to policyholders 210,769 211,446
Dividends to policyholders 796 967
Life insurance claims 11 24
Provision for outstanding claims - 13,588
Provision for underwriting reserves 29,205 56,925
Other underwriting expenses 2,274 4318
Total underwriting expenses 1,554,763 1,610,680

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income (Continued)

Investment expenses:

Investment losses on money trusts
Losses on sales of securities
Impairment losses on securities
Losses on redemption of securities
Losses on derivative transactions
Other investment expenses

Total investment expenses

Operating expenses and general and administrative
expenses

Other ordinary expenses:
Interest expense
Losses on bad debts
Other ordinary expenses
Total other ordinary expenses

Total ordinary expenses

Ordinary profit/(loss)

Extraordinary income and losses
Extraordinary income:

Gains on sales of fixed assets
Other extraordinary income
Total extraordinary income

Extraordinary losses:
Losses on sales of fixed assets
Impairment losses on fixed assets
Provision for reserves under the special laws:
Provision for reserve for price fluctuation
Total provision for reserves under the special laws
Other extraordinary losses
Total extraordinary losses
Income/(loss) before income taxes
Income taxes — current
Income taxes - deferred

Total income taxes

Net income/(loss)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2015 2016
(Yen in millions)

¥ - 536
2,256 5,592
3,782 8,686
826 1,061
3,988 -
7.340 16,658
18.195 32,535
280.109 293,588
5,999 6,205
20 82
799 2,172
6.819 8.460
1.859.888 1.945.264
199,114 191,354
8,817 1,813
1,800 8,807
10,617 10,621
2,543 558
1,400 8,779
40,738 3.613
40,788 3,613
- 1,139
44.732 14,090
164.999 187,884
¥ 16,408 43,642
40.635 5.979
57.043 49,621

¥ 107,956 138,262

Lo
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income (Continued)

Net income/(loss) attributable to non-conirolling interests
Net income/(loss) attributable to owners of the parent

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2015 2016
(Yen in millions)
2,722 2,547

105,233 135,715
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016

2015 2016
(Yen in millions)
Net income/(loss) ¥ 107,956 138,262
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Net unrealized gains/(losses) on investments in securities 362,414 (276,477)
Net deferred gains/(losses) on hedges 8,709 7,973
Foreign currency translation adjustments 51,503 (66,191)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on retirement
benefits 12,432 (30,558)
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of equity method
investments 7.885 (9.877)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) 442 946 (375,132)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ¥ 550,902 {236.869)
Allocation:
Comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to owners
of the parent ¥ 546,245 (235,692)
Comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to non-controlling
interests 4,657 (1,176)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016

2015
(Yen in millions)
Shareholders’ equity
Common stock Capital surplus Retained earnings Total s:;i?t};olders
Beginning balance ¥ 139,595 93,107 291,919 524,622
Cumulatl‘ve effef:t.of changing (6,363) 3,935 2,427)
accounting policies
Beginning balance {adjusted) 139,595 86,744 295,855 522,195
Changes for the year:
Dividends paid (34,798) (34,798)
Net income/(loss) attributable to 105,233 105,233
owners of the parent
Changes in equity resulted from
transactions with 21 2D
non-controlling interests
Net changes of items other than
shareholders’ equity
Total changes for the year - 21) 70,435 70,413
Ending balance ¥ 139,595 86,722 366,290 592,608
Accumulated other comprehensive income/{loss)
Non-
: : A lated Total
Net unrealized | 1oy jogorreq Foreign C:cﬁ]al:i:lc accur?lualatcd controlling Total net
gains/(losses) ; currency : assets
on investments gamsﬁ(]gsses) translation gams{‘(lossesz otl:ler .| interests
in securities on hecges adjustments onégl;;%ntlsm °§,T§.Ife/fl%ss':)°
Beginning balance ¥ 819,141 23,430 33,073 (2,397 873,247 | 25,153 | 1,423,024
Cumulati‘ve effe.ct.of changing ) (2,427)
accounting policies
Beginning balance (adjusted) 819,141 23,430 33,073 2,397) 873,247 | 25,153 | 1,420,5%6
Changes for the year:
Dividends paid (34,798)
Net income/(loss) attributable 105,233
to owners of the parent
Changes in equity resulted
from transactions with 2n
non-controlling interests
Net changes of items other
. 363,594 8,709 56,275 12,428 441,008 2,798 | 443,807
than shareholders’ equity
Total changes for the year 363,594 3,709 56,275 12,428 441,008 2,798 | 514,220
Ending balance ¥1,182,736 32,140 89,349 10,030 | 1,314,256 | 27,9521 1,934,817

CCCCC A r A, A A AAAAAAAAAAAANANANANYANNANNA

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets (Continued)

2016

(Yen in millions)

Shareholders’ equity

Common stock Capital surplus Retained earnings Total s?:;;:t};olders
Beginning balance ¥ 139,595 86,722 366,290 592,608
Cumulative effect of changing )
accounting policies
Beginning balance (adjusted) 139,595 86,722 366,290 592,608
Changes for the year:
Dividends paid (55,999) (55,999)
Net income/(loss) attributable 135,715 135,715
to owners of the parent
Changes in equity resulted
from transactions with -
non-controlling interests
Net changes of items other
than shareholders’ equity
Total changes for the year - - 79,716 79,716
Ending balance ¥ 139,595 86,722 446,006 672,324
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss)
Non-
. Al lated Total
T;‘:fs?(r]";gzgsz)cgn Net deferred  |Foreign currency c:c%na\;i:lc accur?lulated controlling] Total net
£ investments gainsi.:(lgsses) on tégnstlatimt'ls gains{.(lossesz ot}Ler ) interests assels
. ) edges adjustmen! on retirement | comprenensive
in securities ¥ ’ benefits incc?mel(loss)
Beginning balance ¥ 1,182,736 32,140 89,349 10,030 | 1,314,256 | 27,952| 1,934,817
Cumulative effect of changing ) )
accounting policies
Beginning balance (adjusted) 1,182,736 32,140 89,349 10,030 | 1,314,256 | 27,952| 1,934,817
Changes for the year:
Dividends paid (55,999)
Net income/(loss) atiributable 135,715
to owners of the parent
Changes in equity resulted
from transactions with -
non-controlling interests
Net changes of items other
than shareholders’ equity (278,482) (70,295)| (30,603)| (371,408} (2,063) (373.472)
Total changes for the year (278,482) {70,295) | (30,603)| (371,408) (2,063) (293,756)
Ending balance ¥ 904,253 40,113 19,053 (20,573) 042,848 | 25,888 1,641,061

CCCCC O AR A A AAAAAAAAAAAANAANAAANAANYSYAA

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016

Cash flows from operating activities:

Income/(loss) before income taxes

2015

2016

(Yen in millions)

¥ 164,999 187,884
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 27,056 23,849
Impairment losses on fixed assets 1,400 8,779
Amortization of goodwill 4,102 4,209
Increase/(decrease) in outstanding claims (8,144) 14,684
Increase/(decrease) in underwriting reserves 29,024 56,946
Increase/(decrease) in bad debt reserve (9,860) (3,772)
Increase/(decrease) in reserve for retirement benefits for
officers (158) (150)
Increase/{decrease) in accrued bonuses for employees 1,484 462
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities for pension and retirement
benefits (4,913) (1,983)
Increase/(decrease) in reserve for price fluctuation 40,788 3,613
Interest and dividends income (115,532) (120,530)
Losses/(gains) on investments in securities (89,855) (92,644)
Losses/(gains) on derivative transactions 3,988 (19,820)
Interest expense 5,999 6,205
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) (9,195) 0,144
Losses/(gains) on disposal of tangible fixed assets (6,273) (1,254)
Losses/(gains) on equity method investments (1,302) (2,245)
Decrease/(increase) in other assets 34,889 4,572
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 64,675 (34,388)
Other, net (7.232) (4,441)
Subtotal 125,942 39.119
Interest and dividends received 112,692 113,799
Interest paid (5,991) (6,087)
Income taxes refunded/(paid) (12.560) (18.684)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (a) 220,082 128,146

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED

AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

II. Cash flows from investing activities:

Net decrease/(increase) in deposits and savings
Purchase of monetary claims bought
Proceeds from sales and redemption of monetary claims
bought
Purchase of money trusts
Proceeds from sales of money trusts
Purchase of securities
Proceeds from sales and redemption of securities
Investment in loans
Collection of loans
Other, net
Subtotal (b)
(ath)
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets
Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets
Acquisition of intangible fixed assets
Acquisition of shares of subsidiaries resulting in changes in
scope of consolidation
Net payments for sale of subsidiaries resuiting in changes in
scope of consolidation
Other, net
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

IfI. Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Issuance of bonds
Redemption of bonds
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Other, net
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities

IV. Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

V. Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

V1. Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

VII. Decrease in cash and cash equivalents due to exclusion from
scope of consolidation

VII. Increase in cash and cash equivalents due to merger with
unconsolidated subsidiaries

VIII.Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2015

2016

(Yen in millions)

8,866 748
(5,998) -
14,494 7,916

(10,015) (16)

8,949 41

(1,033,498)  (863,672)
818,887 1,134,187
(97,186) (83,746)
135,460 133,598
(5.214) 29.828
(165.254) 358,885
54.828 487,031
(10,587) (8,409)
12,270 3,401
(7,053) (9,927)
- (574,189)
- (7,554)
243 (266)
(170381) __ (238,060)
- 436,767
- (240,000)
- 148,967
- (70,000)
(1,409) (1,382)
(1.435) (844)
(2.845) 273.507
19.874 (14,199)
66,730 149,393
397.857 466.186
- (699)
1,598 -
466,186 614,880
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Significant Accounting Policies

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016

Basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been translated from the
consolidated financial statements of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited (“the
Company™) prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Corporate Accounting
Regulations, the Enforcement Regulations of the Japanese Insurance Business Act and
related rules, and regulations applicable to the non-life insurance industry in general, and in
conformity with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Japan, which may
differ in certain respects from accounting principles and practices generally accepted in
countries and jurisdictions other than Japan. In preparing the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, certain additional information has been provided to the consolidated
financial statements issued domestically in order to present them in a form that is more
familiar to readers outside Japan.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are expressed in Japanese yen. As
permitted by the regulations under the Corporate Accounting Regulations, amounts are
rounded down to the nearest million of Japanese yen, except for those stated otherwise. As a
result, the totals shown in the accompanying consolidated financial statements in Japanese
yen do not necessarily agree with the sums of the individual amounts.

“Subsidiary” and “Associate” appearing in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto refer to those defined in Article 2 of the Corporate Accounting
Regulations.

2. Scope of consolidation

(1) Number of consolidated subsidiaries

90 companies
Major consolidated subsidiaries are as follows:

MSIG Holdings {Americas}, Inc.
MS Amlin ple
MSIG Insurance (Malaysia) Bhd.

Changes in scope of consolidation

MS Amlin plc and other 56 companies have been included in the scope of consolidation
since the year ended March 31, 2016 due to acquisition of shares by the Company.

Cardinal Reinsurance Limited (formerly Mitsui Sumitomo Reinsurance Limited) has been
excluded from the scope of consolidation during the year ended March 31, 2016 due to sales
of shares. Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (London) Limited has been excluded from the scope
of consolidation during the year ended March 31, 2016 as it has been substantially liquidated
and its effect on consolidated net income and retained earnings are not considered material.

b
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(2) Unconsolidated subsidiaries
Major unconsolidated subsidiary is as follows:
MSK Anshin Station Company, Limited
Certain subsidiaries including the above subsidiary are not consolidated, as they are not
considered to affect, in all material aspects, the consolidated financial conditions and

business performance, in view of the size of their total assets, ordinary income, net income
and retained earnings attributable to the Company.

3. Application of equity method
(1) Number of associates accounted for under the equity method
10 companies
Major associates accounted for under the equity method are as follows:

Sumitomo Mitsui Asset Management Company, Limited
PT. Asuransi Jiwa Sinarmas MSIG

Changes in scope of application of equity method

Miles Smith Holdings Limited and Manchester Underwriting Management Limited have
become equity method affiliates during the year ended March 31, 2016 due to acquisition of
shares of MS Amlin plc by the Company.

(2) Other affiliates, including unconsolidated subsidiaries and associates (e.g. MSK Anshin
Station Company, Limited and Hong Leong MSIG Takaful Berhad), are stated at cost as
their effects on consolidated net income and retained earnings are not considered material,
individually and in aggregate.

4. Fiscal year of consolidated subsidiaries

The fiscal year end of certain consolidated subsidiaries, including MS Amlin plc and 88
other companies, is December 31 which is different from that of the Company. The
Company uses the financial statements as of their latest fiscal year end for consolidation
purposes since the intervening period does not exceed three months from the Company’s
fiscal year end.

The Company makes adjustments to incorporate significant transactions occurred during the
intervening period that materially affect the consolidated financial statements.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

5. Accounting policies

(1) Valuation policies and methods of securities (including those included in Cash, deposits and
savings and Monetary claims bought as set forth in the Enforcement Regulations of the
Japanese Insurance Business Act)

(i) Trading securities are valued at their year-end market prices.
(i) Held-to-maturity securities are valued at amortized cost.

(iii) Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associates that are not accounted for
under the equity method are valued at cost determined by the moving average method.

(iv) Available-for-sale securities (except for those without practically determinable fair
value) are valued at their year-end market prices.

Net unrealized gains and losses are reported as a separate line item of net assets and cost
of sales is calculated by the moving average method.

(v) Available-for-sale securities without practically determinable fair value are valued at
cost using the moving average method.

(vi) Money trusts which are specifically managed for the Company for trading purposes are
valued at their year-end market prices. Money trusts which are specifically managed for
the Company, other than money trusts held for trading purposes and money trusts held
to maturity, are valued on the same basis as available-for-sale securities.

(2) Valuation policies and methods of derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are valued at fair value.
(3) Depreciation methods of significant depreciable assets
(i) Depreciation of tangible fixed assets is computed using the straight-line method.

(Changes in accounting policies which are difficult to distinguish from changes in
accounting estimates)

The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries have changed the depreciation
method of tangible fixed assets from the declining-balance method to the straight-line
method since the year ended March 31, 2016. Previously, depreciation of tangible fixed
assets held by the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries was computed
using the declining-balance method, except for buildings (excluding fixtures) acquired
on or after April 1, 1998, to which the straight-line method was applied.

MS&AD Insurance Group to which the Company belongs has been endeavoring to
enhance the efficiency of its business management as a group and expand its
international business with an aim to become one of the top global insurance and
financial groups since April 1, 2010, when it was established. MS&AD Insurance Group
has also moved forward with the reorganization by function as planned in “Next
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Challenge 2017” medium-term management plan, and most of the individual
reorganization plans had been put in practice by the end of the previous year.

With the reorganization by function taking place, MS&AD Insurance Group reviewed
its accounting policies including those applied by overseas subsidiaries and determined
that it is more appropriate to adopt the straight-line depreciation method for tangible
fixed assets for the following reasons:

(a) After the reorganization by function, it is expected that tangible fixed assets held by
the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries will be used stably over
their useful lives. Therefore, by adopting the straight-line method, in which an equal
amount of expenses is recognized over useful lives of tangible fixed assets, it is
considered that the actval usage of tangible fixed assets will be more appropriately
reflected in profit and loss for each reporting period.

(b By adopting the straight-line method, MS&AD Insurance Group will be able to
unify accounting policies applied by domestic consolidated subsidiaries with those
applied by overseas consolidated subsidiaries that have been using the straight-line
method, and be able to provide more useful financial information.

As a result of the change, Ordinary profit/(loss) and Income/(loss) before income taxes
increased by ¥3,217 million, compared with the amounts calculated by the previous
accounting method.

Intangible fixed assets are amortized by the straight-line method. Capitalized software
for internal use is amortized by the straight-line method over its estimated useful life.

(4) Accounting policies for significant reserves

Bad debt reserve

For the Company, bad debt reserve is established under the internal standards for
self-assessment of assets and the policy for write-off and provision.

Bad debt reserve for loans to debtors who are legaily deemed to be insolvent due to
bankruptcy or special liquidation, or whose notes are under suspension at clearing
houses, and loans to debtors who are deemed to be substantiatly insolvent is provided
based on the outstanding balance remaining after deducting the resale value of collateral
and the amount collectible through guarantees.

Bad debt reserve for loans to debtors who are likely to become insolvent in the future is
provided based on the outstanding balance remaining after deducting the resale value of
collateral, the amount collectible through guarantees and the amount expected to be
repaid by the debtors considering their overall ability to pay.

For loans other than those described above, bad debt reserve is calculated by
multiplying the outstanding balances by the historical bad debt ratios.

Bad debt reserve for all loans and receivables is provided based on the assessment under
the internal standards for self-assessment of assets. The assessment is performed by
departments which are responsible for the respective assets and the results are reviewed
by the independent internal audit departments.

T2
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

For domestic consolidated subsidiaries, bad debt reserve is established under their
internal standards for self-assessment of assets and policies for write-off and provision
similar to those of the Company.

For overseas consolidated subsidiaries, bad debt reserve is established based on the
assessment of collectability of individual receivables.

(ii) Reserve for retirement benefits for officers

Reserve for retirement benefits that covers the cost for services rendered by officers and
operating officers of the Company up to the year ended March 31, 2005, the date in
which the retirement benefits plans for officers were terminated, is established based on
the estimated amounts to be paid at the year-end to provide for future retirement benefits
(including pension) for officers and operating officers of the Company.

(iii) Accrued bonuses for employees

Accrued bonuses for employees are determined based on the estimated amounts to be
paid at the year-end to provide for future bonuses for employees and operating officers.

(iv) Reserve for price fluctuation

For the Company, the reserve for price fluctuation is recognized under Article 115 of the
Insurance Business Act to provide for possible losses arising from price fluctuation of
investment assets such as equity securities.

(5} Accounting for retirement benefits
(i) Attribution method of retirement benefits over the service period

In computing retirement benefit obligations, the estimated retirement benefits are
attributed to the periods up to the current year using the plan’s benefit formula.

(ii)Accounting for actuarial gains and losses and past service costs

Actuarial gains and losses are amortized, commencing from the following year, using
the straight-line method over a certain number of years (primarily 10 years) that do not
exceed the expected average remaining service period of employees at the time of
occurrence.

Past service costs are amortized using the straight-line method over a certain number of
years (4 years) that do not exceed the average remaining service period of employees at
the time of occurrence.

(6) Translation of foreign currency assets and liabilities

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities of the Company are translated into Japanese
yen using the spot exchange rate prevailing at the year-end. The foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the translation are recognized in earnings. Foreign currency assets and
liabilities of consolidated overseas subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen using the

71
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

spot exchange rate prevailing at their respective year-ends, while shareholders’ equity is
translated at the historical rates. Income and expenses of overseas consolidated subsidiaries
are translated into Japanese yen using the average exchange rate for the year. Differences
arising from such translations are included in Foreign currency translation adjustments and
Non-controlling interests in Net Assets.

T2
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(7} Accounting for consumption taxes

Consumption taxes received or paid by the Company and its domestic consolidated
subsidiaries are not included in income or expenses, except for those relating to Loss
adjustment expenses and Operating expenses and general and administrative expenses
incurred by the Company. Consumption taxes excluded from income and expenses are
recorded at the net amount on the balance sheet.

Non-deductible consumption taxes are recognized as expenses for the period, except for
those relating to the purchase of depreciable fixed assets which are not charged to expenses
but deferred as Other assets and amortized over a period of five years on a straight-line basis.

(8) Hedge accounting

Under accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”), several
methodologies are allowed for hedge accounting. Two fundamental approaches are the
deferred hedge method and the fair value hedge method. Under the deferred hedge method,
gains and losses on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments are deferred and
accounted for as a separate line item of net assets. Under the fair value hedge method, which
is allowed only with respect to available-for-sale securities being the hedged items, gains and
losses on changes in fair value of the hedging instruments are recognized in earnings
together with the corresponding gains and losses on the hedged items attributable to the risks
being hedged.

In addition, for certain derivative instruments, alternative treatments are permitted under
Japanese GAAP. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and hedged by
foreign exchange forward contracts or currency swaps can be accounted for by the allocation
method. Under this method, the foreign exchange forward contracts and currency swaps used
as hedging instruments are not measured at fair value since gains and losses on the
derivatives are assumed to be offset with changes in fair value of the corresponding hedged
items, and hedged items are translated at the foreign exchange rates that are stipulated in the
foreign exchange forward contracts or currency swaps (hedging instruments). Interest rate
swaps that qualify for hedge accounting and meet specific matching criteria are not
remeasured at fair value, but the differentials paid or received under the swap agreements are
recognized and included in interest expense or income of the hedged items (the exceptional
method).

For the Company, gains and losses on equity forward contracts used for hedging risks of
variability in the fair value of investments in equity securities are accounted for under the
deferred hedge method. Gains and losses on currency swap contracts and certain foreign
exchange forward contracts used for hedging risks of variability in foreign exchange rates on
foreign currency assets are accounted for under the deferred hedge method, the fair value
hedge method or the allocation method. Gains and losses on currency swap contracts used
for hedging risks of variability in foreign exchange rates on foreign currency bonds issued by
the Company are accounted for under the allocation method.

Gains and losses on interest rate swap conftracts used for hedging risks of variability in
interest rates of loans, bonds and borrowings are accounted for under the deferred hedge

method or the exceptional method when they meet certain criteria.

Gains and losses on interest rate and currency swap contracts used for hedging risks of

13
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

variability in foreign exchange rates and interest rates on foreign currency borrowings are
accounted for under the integrated method when they meet certain criteria. The integrated
method is to hedge foreign exchange risks and interest rate risks using the allocation method
and the exceptional method, respectively.

Certain overseas consolidated subsidiaries use certain foreign currency borrowings and
currency option contracts for hedging risks of variability in foreign exchange rates on
investments in subsidiaries. Gains and losses on those financial instruments are accounted
for under the deferred hedge method. In addition, certain foreign exchange forward contracts
are used for hedging instruments in certain overseas consolidated subsidiaries and those are
accounted for under the fair value hedge method.

Hedge effectiveness is assessed quarterly by comparing cumulative fluctuations in fair value
or cash flows of the hedged items and hedging instruments for the periods from the
respective start dates of the hedges to the assessment dates. When the hedged items and the
hedging instruments are highly and clearly interrelated, when the interest rate swap contracts
meet the criteria for application of the exceptional method, or when the interest rate and
currency swap contracts meet the criteria for application of the integrated method, hedge
effectiveness is not assessed.

Certain interest rate swap contracts used for the ALM (Asset and Liability Management) to
ensure adequate control of the risks of interest rate variability are accounted for under the
deferred hedge method and assessed for hedge effectiveness in accordance with the Industry
Audit Committee Report No. 26, “Accounting and Auditing Treatment of Application of the
Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments in the Insurance Industry” (issued by the
Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants on September 3, 2002). The hedge
effectiveness of interest rate swaps used for the ALM is evaluated on a portfolio basis, based
on whether upward and downward movements in value of the hedged items and the hedging
instruments offset each other within a certain range, in respect to changes in the interest
rates.

. Goodwill

Goodwill is amortized using the straight-line method over 20 years. Insignificant amounts of
goodwill are charged to expenses as incurred.

. Changes in presentation

The Company has made a change in presentation of net income and presentation of minority
interests to non-controlling interests in accordance with Paragraph 39 of the Accounting
Standard for Consolidated Financial Statements (ASBJ Statement No.22 issued on
September 13, 2013). The previous year’s presentation has been revised to conform to the
current year’s presentation.

. Cash and cash equivalents on the consolidated statement of cash flows

In preparing the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents constitute
cash on hand, readily available deposits and short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities not exceeding three months.

14
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of March 31, 2015 and 2016

1. The amounts of accumulated depreciation and accelerated depreciation of tangible fixed assets
are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016

Accumulated depreciation 287,319 295,893
Accelerated depreciation 14,649 14,418

(Note) As permitted under Japanese tax legislation for the purpose of deferral in recognizing

taxable income, acquisition cost of certain qualifying properties is reduced to offset the
taxable income that resulted from the sales of assets to be replaced by the acquired
assets or receipts of governmental subsidies provided for the acquisition of the new
assets. The total amounts deducted from the original acquisition cost of the qualifying
properties as of March 31, 2015 and 2016 were ¥14,649 miilion and ¥14,418 million,
respectively.

2. The carrying amounts of equity investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associates are as

follows:
(Yen in millions)
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
Investments in securities (Domestic stocks) 11,464 13,713
Investments in securities (Foreign securities) 145,471 141,057
Investments in securities (Other securities) 9,214 3,805

3. The amounts of loans to borrowers in bankruptcy, overdue loans, loans overdue for three
months or more, and restructured loans are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016

Loans to borrowers in bankruptcy 3 1
Overdue loans 370 161
Loans overdue for three months or more 501 587
Restructured loans 556 516
Total 1,432 1,265
(Note) Loans to borrowers in bankruptcy represent those, excluding any part of bad debts

that have been written off, on which accrued interest receivables are not recognized
because repayments of the principal or interest have been overdue for considerable
periods and regarded uncollectible (hereinafter, this category is referred to as “Loans
not accruing interest”) and which meet the conditions prescribed in Article 96, Section
1-3 or 1-4 of the Corporation Tax Act Enforcement Ordinance (Cabinet Order No.97,
1965).

Overdue loans represent loans not accruing interest excluding (a) loans to borrowers in
bankruptcy and (b) loans that have been granted a grace period for interest payments
in order to assist the debtors’ operational restructuring or financial recovery.

Loans overdue for three months or more represent those of which the principal or
interest has been past due for three months or more after the contractval due date for
repayments of the principal or interest. The loans to borrowers in bankruptcy and
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

overdue loans are excluded from this category.

Restructured loans represent those which have been granted favorable terms for the
benefit of the debtors, such as interest exemption or reduction, a grace period for
interest payments, a grace period for principal repayments or forgiveness of debts for
the purpose of the restructuring of, or support to the debtors in financial difficulty. The
loans to borrowers in bankruptcy, overdue loans and loans overdue for three months or
more are excluded from this category.

4. The amounts of pledged assets are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016

Investments in securities 121,280 234,550
Cash, deposits and savings 7,666 21,934

(Note) The amounts in the above table primarily consist of collateral assets required for
international operations and for Real Time Gross Settlement of the current account
with the Bank of Japan.

follows: ‘

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
59,600 109,244

which the Company has the right to sell or repledge are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
Commercial papers 23,997 14,999
Securities 4,751 8,561
(Note) All securities and commercial papers in the above table have not been resold or
repledged, and are held by the Company and its subsidiaries.

7. Guarantees on transactions conducted by a limited partnership entity are as follows:

March 31, 2015

The Company provides guarantees on transactions conducted by a limited partnership entity.
Aggregate net present value of these transactions was ¥271,594 million in a negative liability
position as of March 31, 2015. This amount was not included in Customers’ liabilities under
acceptances and guarantees or Acceptances and guarantees since there was no substantial

€xXposure.

The amounts of investments in securities loaned under securities lending agreements are as

The amounts of assets received as collateral under resale agreements or reinsurance transactions

F6
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

March 31, 2016

The Company provides guarantees on transactions conducted by a limited partnership entity.
Aggregate net present value of these transactions was ¥202,597 million in a negative liability
position as of March 31, 2016. This amount was not included in Customers’ liabilities under
acceptances and guarantees or Acceptances and guarantees since there was no substantial
exposure.

. The unutilized balance of commitment lines to third parties are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016

295 -

(1
®

(i)

. Information on financial instruments

Qualitative information on financial instruments
Policy on financial instruments

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries (“the Group™) apply Asset and Liability
Management (ALM) policies to maintain stability of investment returns, safety of assets
and sufficient liquidity under an appropriate risk management framework to attain the
sustainable growth of the net asset value. In addition, the Group is exposed to investment
risks such as market risks and credit risks and manages those risks in accordance with the
risk management policies of the Company and each group company.

The Group’s cash inflows which mainly arise from insurance operations and investment
activities are affected by changes in external environment such as occurrences of natural
disasters and changes in financial market conditions. In order to enhance efficiency of
funds operations and strengthen financial capacity under such changing conditions, the
Company undertakes to raise funds through issuance of long-term or short-term corporate
bonds or other financing methods as the needs arise.

Details of financial instruments and associated risks

The Group’s financial assets mainly consist of securities including domestic bonds,
domestic stocks and foreign securities, loans and other financial instruments. Risks
pertaining to investments include market risks, credit risks, market liquidity risks and other
risks. Market risks arise from fluctuations in interest rates, stock prices, foreign exchange
rates and other market indicators. Credit risks arise from deterioration in the financial
condition of security issuers and counterparties of loans. Market liquidity risks represent
the risks that investment assets are forced to be sold at extremely unfavorable prices under
turmoil in the financial markets.

The Group utilizes derivative transactions represented by interest rate swaps, interest rate
options, bond future contracts, equity index future contracts, currency swaps, foreign

7
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

exchange forward contracts, currency options, and interest rate and currency swaps for the
purpose of hedging risks such as fluctuations in interest rates, stock prices and foreign
exchange rates. In addition, the Group utilizes credit derivatives and weather derivatives in
order to generate investment returns with consideration given to the associated risks.

For details of derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied, please refer to
“Significant Accounting Policies, 5. Accounting policies, (8) Hedge accounting™.

In general, derivative transactions involve risks associated with fluctuations in fair value of
derivative financial instruments, risks of nonperformance resulting from insolvency of
counterparties and market liquidity risks. Derivative transactions utilized by the Group are
also exposed to these risks. However, market risks associated with derivative transactions
utilized for the purpose of hedging are mitigated, as changes in the fair value of hedged
items and hedging instruments offset each other. In order to mitigate credit risks arising
from the nonperformance of counterparties, most of the Group’s derivative transactions are
executed only with selected counterparties of high credit quality and diversified amongst
various counterparties, and the Group utilizes legally enforceable master netting
agreements with the counterparties.

(iii) Risk management structure relating to financial instruments

The Group manages risks in accordance with the basic policy for risk management and
internal policies for asset management risks, which stipulate the definition of risks and
management method established by the Board of Directors. At the Company, the risk
management department is segregated from the trading and the back-office departments and
maintains a structure which enables to exercise organizational checks and balances. In
addition, the risk management department assesses, analyzes, and manages risks by
quantifying market and credit risks using the VaR (Value-at-Risk) method and risk limit
management based on asset and liability position, and regularly reports the results to the
Board of Directors.

a. Market risk management

The Group maintains and operates a risk management structure taking into account the
characteristics of each financial instrument in accordance with its internal policies for
market risk management. In addition to monitoring of risk amount by quantifying risks
using the VaR method as described above, the Company manages market risks through
assessment of potential risks that cannot be identified using the VaR method, analysis of
sensitivity of existing assets to changes in interest rates, stock prices and foreign
exchange rates and analysis of concentration and weakness of portfolio.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

b. Credit risk management

The Group maintains and operates a risk management structure in accordance with its
internal policies for credit risk management. For loans at the Company, the trading and
risk management departments maintain a credit risk management structure through
credit screening, setting internal credit ratings and credit limits, managing credit
information, requiring collaterals and guarantees where necessary, and resolving
delinquent loans on an individual loan basis. For securities and derivative transactions at
the Company, the trading and risk management departments manage credit risks of
security issuers and derivative counterparties by regularly monitoring the credit
information and fair values associated with the investment assets.

c. Liquidity risk management

The Group maintains and operates a funding and market liquidity risk management
structure in accordance with its internal policies for liquidity risk management. The
Group’s treasury management classifies funding needs into “ordinary” and “emergency”
depending on the urgency level and oversees operation and management for the
liquidity in each level, which gives the foremost consideration to the liquidity risk. The
treasury management also ensures diversification of fundraising activities to secure and
maintain liquidity in various environments. The Group manages funding liquidity risks
by holding a sufficient amount of cash, savings and deposits, and highly liquid securities
such as government bonds, and regularly monitoring their aggregate amounts in case of
unexpected events like catastrophes and the deterioration of funding liquidity arising
from turmoil in the financial markets.

(iv) Supplementary explanation of matters relating to the fair value of financial instruments and

@)

other information

The fair value of financial instruments is determined based on market prices and, when market
prices are not available, based on reasonable estimates. In determining fair value, certain
assumptions and methods are used, thus the fair value may differ if alternative assumptions are
applied.

Supplementary information on fair value of financial instruments

The following tables summarize the carrying amounts on the consolidated balance sheets
and the fair values of financial instruments as of March 31, 2015 and 2016 together with
their differences. The following tables exclude financial instruments in which the fair
values are not practically determinable (see Note 2).

March 31, 2015

9
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheets {Continued)

(Yen in millions)

Carrying amount Fair value Difference
(i) Cash, deposits and savings 426,997 427.010 13
(i) Call loans 40,000 40,000 -
(iii) Receivables under resale
agreements 36,497 36,497 -
(iv) Monetary claims bought 102,423 102,423 -
(v) Money trusts 13,048 13,048 -
(vi) Investments in securities:
Trading securities - - -
Available-for-sale securities 5,178,745 5,178,745 -
(vii) Loans 498,658
Bad debt reserve (*1) (307
498,351 509,062 10,710
Total assets 6,296,063 6,306,788 10,724
Bonds issued 176,188 190,561 14,372
Total liabilities 176,188 190,561 14,372
Derivative transactions (*2):
Hedge accounting not applied 6,504 6,504 -
Hedge accounting applied 41,792 41,792 -
Total derivative transactions 48,296 48,296 -

(*1) Bad debt reserve for loans is deducted from the carrying amount.
(*2) Derivative assets and liabilities included in Other assets and Other liabilities are
presented on a net basis. Debits and credits arising from derivative transactions are

CCCCCC AN~~~ A AAAAAAA AR AN A N NN NN

netted.

March 31, 2016
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

(Yen in millions)

Carrying amount Fair value Difference
(i) Cash, deposits and savings 691,961 691,954 (7
(ii) Call loans - - -
(iii) Receivables under resale
agreements 29,999 29,999 -
(iv) Monetary claims bought 90,694 90,694 -
(v) Money trusts 11,664 11,664 -
(vi) Investments in securities:
Trading securities 698,137 698,137 -
Available-for-sale securities 4,531,563 4,531,563 -
(vii) Loans 448,697
Bad debt reserve (*1) (121)
448,575 458,971 10,396
Total assets 6,502,598 6,512,986 10,388
Bonds issued 299,841 316,454 16,613
Total liabilities 299,841 316,454 16,613
Derivative transactions (*2):
Hedge accounting not applied 19,808 19,808 -
Hedge accounting applied 39,833 39,833 -
Total derivative transactions 59,641 59,641 -

CCCCC AR A A AR~ A A A A AAAAAANAANANANAANNANNANND

(*1) Bad debt reserve for loans is deducted from the carrying amount.

(*2) Derivative assets and liabilities included in Other assets and Other liabilities are
presented on a net basis. Debits and credits arising from derivative transactions are
netted.

(Note 1) Determination of fair value of financial instruments

Assets

(i) Cash, deposits and savings
With regard to deposits and savings, the fair value is measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at interest rates applicable to the same type of
new deposits and savings based on duration. With regard to deposits and savings
without maturities and short-term deposits and savings, the book value is deemed as the
fair value due to their demand feature or short term duration.

(ii) Call loans

With regard to Call loans, the book value approximates the fair value since they are
scheduled to be settled in a short period of time.

(iii) Receivables under resale agreements

With regard to Receivables under resale agreements, the book value approximates the
fair value since they are scheduled to be settled in a short period of time.

(iv) Monetary claims bought
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

With regard to commercial papers (CP), the book value approximates the fair value
since they are scheduled to be settled in a short period of time. With regard to Monetary
claims bought other than CP, the price quoted by counterparty financial institutions is
deemed as the fair value.

(v) Money trusts
With regard to Money trusts, the price quoted by trustees is deemed as the fair value.
(vi) Investments in securities

The fair value of equity securities is determined based on the quoted market price and
the fair value of bonds is determined based on the price quoted by exchanges,
independent price venders or counterparty financial institutions.

(vii) Loans

With regard to floating rate loans, the book value approximates the fair value contingent
on no significant changes in the credit conditions of the debtor, because the floating
rates on the loans reflect market interest rates. With regard to fixed rate loans, for loans
sorted by type, term and credit rating, the fair value is based on the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at market interest rates, such as yields on
government bonds, plus a credit spread. The fair value of certain personal loans is
determined at the net present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
interest rates applicable to the same type of new loans.

With regard to policy loans, which do not have contractual maturities, as the loan
amount is limited to the surrender value, the carrying amount approximates the fair
value, considering their estimated repayment periods and interest rates.

With regard to loans to debtors that are legally or substantially bankrupt and loans to
doubtful debtors, the carrying amount less bad debt reserve is deemed as the fair value,
because the bad debt reserve is determined based on the present value of the estimated
future cash flows or the value of the collateral and the amount collectible through
guarantees.

Liabilities
Bonds issued
With regard to Bonds issued, the fair value is determined based on “Reference Statistical
Prices for OTC Bond Transactions” published by the Japan Securities Dealers
Association, prices quoted by counterparty financial institutions, or other appropriate

method.

Derivative transactions

With regard to derivative transactions, the fair value is determined based on published
forward exchange rates, closing prices at major exchanges, prices quoted by
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheets {Continued)

counterparty financial institutions or prices calculated by the option pricing model.

(Note 2) The carrying amounts of financial instruments in which the fair values are not
practically determinable, which are not included in “(vi} Investments in securities”
above, are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31,2015 March 31, 2016

Unlisted stocks and other assets invested in

unconsolidated subsidiaries and associates 166,150 163,577
Other vunlisted stocks 46,451 26919
Partnership investments comprised of unlisted 53,868 42,426

stocks
Total 266,470 232,924

The fair value of the financial instruments in the above table is not disclosed because their
fair value is not practically determinable due to lack of marketability or difficulties in
reasonably estimating future cash flows.

10. The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries own investment properties in Tokyo and
other areas. The carrying amounts, changes in carrying amounts and fair value of the investment
properties are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

March 31, 2015  March 31,2016

Carrying amount 39,034 37,547
Fair value 06,226 105,082
(Notes)

1. Carrying amount represents the acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation.

2. Fair value is primarily determined based on the appraisal values provided by qualified
external appraisers. With respect to the properties with no substantial changes in their
appraisal values or indices that were considered to appropriately reflect market prices since
most recent appraisal dates, the fair value is determined based on these appraisal values or
the values adjusted by the relevant indices.

83
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheets {Continued)

11. Business combination
(Business combination through acquisition)
The Company acquired shares of Amlin ple (“Amlin™), a holding company which operates the

insurance business globally, mainly in the Lloyd’s insurance market in the UK, Amlin became
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and was rebranded to MS Amlin plc.

(1) Overview of business combination

(i) Name and business description of acquired company
Name of acquired company: Amlin ple
Description of business: Holding company with non-life insurance subsidiaries and other
subsidiaries and associates

(ii) Primary reasons for business combination
With the acquisition of Amlin, the Company aims to establish a leading position in the
global insurance market, enhance its operating base through diversified portfolios, and
maximize synergies globally, leveraging the strength of the Company and Amlin.

(iii} Date of business combination
Febrvary 1, 2016

(iv) Legal form of business combination
Acquisition of shares

(v) Name of acquired company after the business combination
MS Amlin plc

(vi) Percentage share of voting rights acquired
100%

(vii) Primary reasons for determination of controlling company

The Company is the controlling entity, as the Company acquired 100% of voting rights of
Amlin.

(2) Period of the acquired company’s financial results included in the consolidated financial
statements

The acquired company’s financial results are not included in the consolidated statement of
income for the year ended March 31, 2016, because the deemed acquisition date was December
31, 2015 and the acquired company is consolidated based on their financial statements as of
December 31, 2015,

84
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

(3) Acquisition cost and breakdown by class of consideration

(GBP in millions)
Consideration for Cash 3,401
acquisition
Total acquisition cost 3,401

(4) Description and amount of major acquisition-related costs

Advisory fee ¥3,739 million
UK Stamp duty  ¥3,141 million

(5} Amount and source of goodwill and amortization method and period
(i) Amount of goodwill

GBP 731 million

The amount of goodwill is calculated provisionally, as the purchase price allocation has not
been completed.

(i) Source of goodwill

The investment amount (acquisition cost) under the share acquisition agreement exceeded
the net amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

(iii) Amortization method and period

The goodwill is to be amortized using the straight-line method over 20 years.

(6) Amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on acquisition date and their major

components
(GBP in millions)
Investments in securities 3,919
Intangible fixed assets 1,266
Other assets 2,823
Total assets 8,008
Policy liabilities 4,352
Other liabilities 982
Total liabilities 5,334

The amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed is calculated provisionally, as the
purchase price allocation has not been completed.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

(7) Purchase price allocation

The Company provisionally accounted for the business combination based on the relevant
information available as of March 31, 2016, because the acquisition date was December 31,
2015 and the purchase price allocation has not been completed.

(8) Estimated amount of impact on the consolidated statement of income for the year ended
March 31, 2016, assuming that the business combination had been completed on the
commencement date of the year

(Yen in millions)

Net premiums written 451,805
Ordinary profit/(loss) 24,333
Net income/(loss) attributable to 23181

owners of the parent

{Calculation method for the estimated amount)

The estimated amount of impact on the consolidated statement of income was calculated as a
difference between Net premiums written, Ordinary profit/(loss) and Net income/(loss)
attributable to owners of the parent calculated assuming that the business combination had been
completed on the commencement date of the year and those in the consolidated statement of
income of the acquired company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2016, The amount of
amortization was calculated assuming that intangible fixed assets including goodwill
recognized at the time of the business combination had been recognized on the commencement
date of the current year,

The information above has not been audited.

8l
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

12. Adjustments to deferred tax assets and liabilities and others due to changes in income tax rates

are as follows:

In accordance with the “Act for Partial Revision of the Income Tax Act etc.” (Act No.15 of
2016) and the “Act for Partial Amendment of the Local Tax Act, etc.” (Act No. 13 of 2016)
enacted by the Diet on March 29, 2016, the corporate and local tax rates will be reduced from
the year commencing on or after April 1, 2016.

Accordingly, the statutory income tax rates to determine deferred tax assets and liabilities for
temporary differences expected to reverse in the years commencing on April 1, 2016 and 2017,
and those in the years commencing on or after April 1, 2018 are reduced from 28.8% to 28.2%
and 27.9%, respectively.

The effect of this change was decreases in Deferred tax assets of ¥1 million, Underwriting
reserves of ¥93 million and Deferred tax liabilities of ¥4,504 million and increases in Net
unrealized gains/(losses) on investments in securities of ¥10,959 million and Income
taxes-deferred of ¥6,721 million. As a result, Net income/(loss) attributable to owners of the
parent decreased by ¥6,649 million.

13. The amounts of net assets per share are as follows:

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016

Net assets per share (in Yen) 1,357.77 1,150.07

Non—controlln?g 1nltefests deducted from net 27.952 25.888
assets (Yen in millions)

Outstanding common shares (in thousands of

1,404,402 1,404,402
shares)

8%
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidéted Statements of Income

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016

Major components of business expenses are as follows:

(Yen in millions)
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016
Commission expenses 305,415 321,272
Salaries 144,708 148,395
(Note) Business expenses represent the aggregate amount of Loss adjustment expenses,
Operating expenses and general and administrative expenses, and Commissions and
collection expenses presented in the consolidated statements of income.

Impairment losses recognized on fixed assets are as follows:

For the vear ended March 31, 2015

(Yen in millions)

- Impairment losses on fixed assets
Use Category Description Breakdown

Investment o1 A building for rent -

properties Buildings in Aichi 39 |Buildings 39

3 properties,

llerealestate |y .\320d | including a Land 1,003

and real estate oy 1,361 1 1s

f buildings company house Buildings 357

or sale . .
in Chiba

Fixed assets used for the insurance business operations are grouped as a single asset group by
each insurance company. Other assets such as investment properties, idle assets and assets for
sale are grouped on an individual basis.

Fixed assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances, such as
a significant decline in the value of the asset (asset group) or a change in the intended use of the
asset, indicate that the carrying amount of the asset (asset group) may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is measured by the amount in which the carrying amount of the asset (asset
group) exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of 1) the sum of discounted cash
flows from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset {asset group) and 2) the net
sales value at disposition.

As the assets in the above table were to be disposed in the near future, ¥1,400 million of the
aggregate difference between the carrying amounts of the assets in the above table and the
recoverable amounts was recognized as impairment losses on fixed assets under Extraordinary
losses.

The recoverable amounts of these assets represent their net sales value, which are determined
based on the appraisal value provided by qualified appraisers.
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AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Statements of Income (Continued)

For the vear ended March 31, 2016

(Yen in millions)

o Impairment losses on fixed assets
Use Category Description Breakdown
Investment Land and | A building for rent 110 Land 34
properties buildings in Nagano Buildings 75
4 properties,
Idle real estate Land and including a office Land 7,221
and real estate . o r 8,184 g
buildings building in Buildings 963
for sale
Tokyo
Other Software related to
intangible | the insurance . .
Other fixed business 485
assets operations

Fixed assets used for the insurance business operations are grouped as a single asset group by
each insurance company. Other assets such as investment properties, idle assets and assets for
sale are grouped on an individual basis.

Fixed assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances, such as
a significant decline in the value of the asset (asset group) or a change in the intended use of the
asset, indicate that the carrying amount of the asset (asset group) may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is measured by the amount in which the carrying amount of the asset (asset
group) exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of 1) the sum of discounted cash
flows from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset (asset group) and 2) the net
sales value at disposition.

As the assets in the above table were to be disposed in the near future or determined to be
closed, ¥8,779 million of the aggregate difference between the carrying amounts of the assets in
the above table and the recoverable amounts was recognized as impairment losses on fixed
assets under Extraordinary losses.

The recoverable amounts of these assets represent their net sales value, which are determined
based on the appraisal value provided by qualified appraisers.

3. Details of Other extraordinary income are as follows:

For the vear ended March 31, 2015

In accordance with the reorganization by function that was agreed among MS&AD Insurance
Group Holdings, Inc., the parent company of the Company, and its insurance subsidiaries
including the Company, the Company received cash or recognized receivable from other
MS&AD insurance group companies in consideration for the transfer of certain future insurance
businesses.

84q
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AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Statements of Income (Continued)
(Yen in millions)

Amount of
consideration

Counterparty Description of transferred business

Long-term care and medical insurance
contracts newly written on and after 1,000
April 1, 2014

Insurance contracts through motor

Mitsui Sumitomo Aioi Life
Insurance Co., Ltd.

Aioi Nissay Dowa Insurance

Co. Ltd channel agencies newly written on and 400
A after October 1, 2014
Insurance contracts newly written at
certain sales offices on and after 400

October 1, 2014

For the year ended March 31, 2016

Other extraordinary income represents reversal of Foreign currency translation adjustments
related to Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (London) Limited.

Details of Other extraordinary losses are as foilows:

For the vear ended March 31, 2016

Other extraordinary losses represent system costs that were recognized by the reorganization
by function.

. The amounts of net income/(loss) attributable to owners of the parent per share are as follows:

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016

Net income/(loss) a:rtributable to owners of the 14.93 96.63
parent per share (in Yen)

(Notes)
1. Since there was no potential dilution for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016, diluted

net income/(loss) per share is not disclosed.
2. The basis of calculation is as follows:

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016

Net income/(loss) attributable to owners of the
parent (Yen in millions)

Average: outstanding common stock during the 1,404,402 1,404,402
year {in thousands of shares)

105,233 135,715

)
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AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016

1. Reclassification adjustments and income tax effects of other
comprehensive income/(loss)
2015 2016
(Yen in millions)
Net unrealized gains/(losses) on investments in securities:

Gains/(losses) arising during the period 574,465 (297,924)
Reclassification adjustments (98.067) (102,260}
Before income tax effect adjustments 476,398 (400,184)
Income tax effects (113.984) 123.707
Net unrealized gains/(losses) on investments in
securities 362414 (276.477)
Net deferred gains/(losses) on hedges:
Gains/(losses) arising during the period - 16,489 16,202
Reclassification adjustments (5.158) (5.659)
Before income tax effect adjustments 11,330 10,542
Income tax effects (2.620) (2.569)
Net deferred gains/(losses) on hedges 8.709 7.973
Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Gains/(losses) arising during the period 50,820 (55,652)
Reclassification adjustments 683 (10,539)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 51,503 (66,191)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on retirement benefits:
Gains/(losses) arising during the period 15,724 (42,487)
Reclassification adjustments 1,765 (63)
Before income tax effect adjustments 17,489 (42,550)
Income tax effects (5.057) 11,991
Actuarial gains/(losses) on retirement benefits 12.432 (30.558)

Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of equity
method investments:

Gains/(losses) arising during the period 9,404 (8,307)

Reclassification adjustments (1.518) (1.570)
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of

equity method investments 7.885 (9.877)

Total other comprehensive income/(loss) 442 946 (375.132)

G1
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016

For the vear ended March 31, 2015

1. Type and number of issued stock and treasury stock

(in thousands of shares)

Beginning balance Increase Decrease Ending balance

Issued stock:
Common stock 1,404,402 - - 1,404,402
Total 1,404,402 - - 1,404,402

(Note) Not applicable to treasury stock
2. Dividends

(1) Dividends paid

Type of assets for dividends Dividends .
Resolution Type of and their book value per share Date of | Effective
shares . . record date
(Yen in millions) (in Yen)
Board meeting held on| Common |Treasury Discount 16.198 11.53 March 31, June 6,
May 20, 2014 stock Bills : ’ 2014 2014
Board meeting held on| Common MS&{XD Loan October 1,
Services Co., Ltd. 0 0.00 -
Aupgust 8, 2014 stock 2014
Common stock
Board meeting held on| Common | Treasury Discount 18.599 13.24 ) November 20,
November 19, 2014 stock Bills i : 2014

(Note) Date of record is the date to determine shareholders who are entitled to receive dividends.

(2) Dividends declared effective after March 31, 2015 for which the date of record is in the year ended
March 31, 2015

Type of assets for dividends Dividends .
Resolution Type of and their book value S.m{rce of per share Date of | Effective
shares PR dividends | *. record date
(Yen in millions) (in Yen)
Board meeting held | Common |Treasury Discount 33.399 Retained 23.78 March 31, | May 26,
on May 19, 2015 stock Bills ? earmings ) 2015 2015

{Note) Dividends to be paid determined by the Board meeting held on May 19, 2015 include the
amount of ¥2,418 million, which corresponds to the consideration of monitoring and
management services provided by MS&AD Insurance Group Holdings Inc., the parent of the
Company.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets (Continued)

For the vear ended March 31, 2016

1. Type and number of issued stock and treasury stock

(in thousands of shares)

ccCccCcCCcC O~ AAAAAAAAAAAAAANAA NS ASSYANASND

Beginning balance Increase Decrease Ending balance
Issued stock:
Common stock 1,404,402 - - 1,404,402
Total 1,404,402 - - 1,404,402
(Note) Not applicable to treasury stock
2. Dividends
(1) Dividends paid
Type of assets for dividends Dividends .
Resolution Type of and their book value per share Dateof | Effective
shares . ) record date
{Yen in millions) (in Yen)
Board meeting held on| Common | Treasury Discount 33.399 2378 March 31, | May 26,
May 19, 2015 stock Bills ’ ) 2015 2015
Board meeting held on| Common | Treasury Discount November 19,
November 16, 2015 stock Bills 22,600 16.09 ) 2015

(Notes)

1. Dividends paid determined by the Board meeting held on May 19, 2015 include the amount of
¥2,418 million, which corresponds to the consideration of monitoring and management services
provided by MS&AD Insurance Group Holdings Inc., the parent of the Company.

2. Dividends paid determined by the Board meeting held on November 16, 2015 include the amount of
¥1,736 million, which corresponds to the consideration of monitoring and management services
provided by MS&AD Insurance Group Holdings, Inc., the parent of the Company.

(3) Dividends declared effective after March 31, 2016 for which the date of record is in the year ended

March 31, 2016
. Type of Aggr egate amount of Source of Dividends Date of | Effective
Resolution dividends . per share
shares e dividends | *. record date
(Yen in millions} (in Yen)
Board meeting held | Common 45.814 Retained 32 62 March 31, | May 23,
on May 18, 2016 stock ’ eamnings ) 2016 2016

(Note) Dividends to be paid determined by the Board meeting held on May 18, 2016 include the
amount of ¥2,631 million, which corresponds to the consideration of monitoring and
management services provided by MS&AD Insurance Group Holdings, Inc., the parent of the

Company.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2016

1. Reconciliation of balance sheet items to cash and cash equivalents

(Yen in millions)

2015 2016
Cash, deposits and savings 426,997 691,961
Call loans 40,000 -
Receivables under resale agreements 36,497 29,999
Monetary claims bought 102,423 90,694
Money trusts 13,048 11,664
Investments in securities 5,445,215 5,462,625
Time deposits with original maturities of more than three months (133,648) (141,628)
Monetary claims bought other than cash equivalents (36,950) (83,095)
Money trust other than cash equivalents (13,048) (11,664)
Investments in securities other than cash equivalents (5,414.349) (5,435,677)
Cash and cash equivalents 466,186 614,880
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

2. Major components of assets and liabilities of newly consolidated subsidiaries due to acquisition of shares

For the year ended March 31, 2016

MS Amlin ple (“MS Amlin™) has been included in the scope of consolidation due to acquisition of
shares. The components of assets and liabilities at the acquisition date, the acquisition cost of MS
Amlin’s shares and net consideration paid for acquisition of MS Amlin are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

Investments in securities 700,664
Intangible fixed assets 226,335
Other assets 504,698
1,431,697

Goodwill 130,719
Policy liabilities (778,126)
Other liabilities (175,653)
Total liabilities (953,779)
Foreign currency translation

adjustments 19,535
Non-controlling interests (495)
Acquisition cost of MS Amlin’s 627.677

shares
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

held at MS Amlin 53,488

Net consideration paid for
acquisition of MS Amlin 574,189
The Company provisionally accounted for the business combination based on the relevant information
available as of March 31, 2016, because the acquisition date was December 31, 2015 and the purchase
price allocation has not been completed.
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MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED
AND ITS CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

3. Major components of assets and liabilities of subsidiaries that have been excluded from the scope of
consolidation due to sales of shares

For the year ended March 31, 2016

Cardinal Reinsurance Limited (“Cardinal Re”) has been excluded from the scope of consolidation due to
sales of shares. The components of assets and liabilities at the time of sales, the sales value and net
payments for sales of Cardinal Re’s shares are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

Assets . 17,252
Liabilities (7.386)
Accumulated other
comprehensive income/(loss) (1,733)
Losses on sales of shares of
e e s 800
subsidiaries
Sales value of Cardinal Re’s 7.330
shares
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 14.885
held at Cardinal Re ’
Net payments for sales of
Cardinal Re (7,554)

4. Cash flows from investing activities include those from investments made as part of the insurance
business,

17



